



# **SENATE JOURNAL**

**STATE OF ILLINOIS**

**ONE HUNDRED SECOND GENERAL  
ASSEMBLY**

**45TH LEGISLATIVE DAY**

**WEDNESDAY, MAY 19, 2021**

**12:11 O'CLOCK P.M.**

**SENATE**  
**Daily Journal Index**  
**45th Legislative Day**

<b>Action</b>	<b>Page(s)</b>
Appointment Message .....	7, 41
Introduction of Senate Bill No. 2901 .....	7
Introduction of Senate Bill No. 2902 .....	31
Legislative Measures Filed .....	3, 8, 28
Messages from the House .....	31
Motion .....	8
Presentation of Senate Joint Resolution No. 32 .....	28
Presentation of Senate Resolution No. 308 .....	3
Presentation of Senate Resolution No. 309 .....	28
Report from Assignments Committee .....	8
Report from Standing Committee .....	29
Reports from Standing Committees .....	3
Reports Received .....	3

<b>Bill Number</b>	<b>Legislative Action</b>	<b>Page(s)</b>
SB 0633	Recalled - Amendment(s) .....	19
SB 0633	Third Reading .....	22
SB 1770	Posting Notice Waived .....	8
SB 2158	Second Reading .....	23
SJR 0032	Committee on Assignments .....	28
SJRCA 0011	Constitutional Amendment – First Reading .....	41
HB 0018	Recalled – Amendment(s) .....	9
HB 0227	Second Reading .....	27
HB 0376	Recalled – Amendment(s) .....	19
HB 0452	Recalled – Amendment(s) .....	12
HB 0832	Second Reading .....	27
HB 1926	Recalled – Amendment(s) .....	14
HB 2379	Posting Notice Waived .....	19
HB 2394	Recalled – Amendment(s) .....	19
HB 2426	First Reading .....	8
HB 3702	Posting Notice Waived .....	19

The Senate met pursuant to adjournment.  
Senator Linda Holmes, Aurora, Illinois, presiding.  
Silent prayer was observed by all members of the Senate.  
Senator Bennett led the Senate in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Senator Hunter moved that reading and approval of the Journal of Tuesday, May 18, 2021, be postponed, pending arrival of the printed Journal.  
The motion prevailed.

### **REPORTS RECEIVED**

The Secretary placed before the Senate the following reports:

Reporting Requirement of 50 ILCS 707/20 (Law Enforcement Camera Grant Act), submitted by the Farmer City Police Department.

Reporting Requirement of 50 ILCS 707/15 (Law Enforcement Camera Grant Act), submitted by the Farmer City Police Department.

Reporting Requirement of 50 ILCS 707/15 (Law Enforcement Camera Grant Act), submitted by the Toluca Police Department.

The foregoing reports were ordered received and placed on file in the Secretary's Office.

### **LEGISLATIVE MEASURES FILED**

The following Floor amendment to the Senate Bill listed below has been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 1 to Senate Bill 1370

The following Committee amendments to the House Bills listed below have been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 2755

Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3260

Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3582

### **PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION**

#### **SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 308**

Offered by Senator Morrison and all Senators:  
Mourns the passing of Philip James "Phil" Murphy.

By unanimous consent, the foregoing resolution was referred to the Resolutions Consent Calendar.

### **REPORTS FROM STANDING COMMITTEES**

Senator Stadelman, Chair of the Committee on Local Government, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendment, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 1794

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendment is eligible for consideration on second reading.

Senator Stadelman, Chair of the Committee on Local Government, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 3160 and 3763**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Stadelman, Chair of the Committee on Local Government, to which was referred **House Bill No. 2806**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bill, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Belt, Chair of the Committee on Education, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendment, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 633

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendment is eligible for consideration on second reading.

Senator Belt, Chair of the Committee on Education, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 219, 234, 1778, 2748, 3114, 3178, 3272, 3281, 3461 and 3906**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Belt, Chair of the Committee on Education, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 2438 and 3223**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bills, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Belt, Chair of the Committee on Education, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendments, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 15

Senate Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 18

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendments are eligible for consideration on second reading.

Senator Van Pelt, Chair of the Committee on Healthcare Access and Availability, to which was referred **Senate Resolution No. 58**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the resolution, as amended, be adopted.

Under the rules, **Senate Resolution No. 58** was placed on the Secretary's Desk.

Senator Van Pelt, Chair of the Committee on Healthcare Access and Availability, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 3504, 3620 and 3803**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Van Pelt, Chair of the Committee on Healthcare Access and Availability, to which was referred **House Bill No. 32**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bill, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Van Pelt, Chair of the Committee on Healthcare Access and Availability, to which was referred **House Bill No. 3084**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill, as amended, do pass.

The bill was directed to the Committee on Appropriations- Health.

Senator Peters, Chair of the Committee on Public Safety, to which was referred **House Bill No. 3097**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Peters, Chair of the Committee on Public Safety, to which was referred **House Bill No. 3161**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bill, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Crowe, Chair of the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 55, 263, 679, 842, 1795, 1831, 2553, 3165, 3265, 3462, 3484, 3595, 3764, 3864 and 3968**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Crowe, Chair of the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 266, 3277, 3295, 3577, 3849 and 3914**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bills, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Villivalam, Chair of the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred **Senate Resolution No. 215**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the resolution be adopted.

Under the rules, **Senate Resolution No. 215** was placed on the Secretary's Desk.

Senator Villivalam, Chair of the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 20, 96, 253, 396, 694, 1915, 1927, 1928, 2432, 2529, 2860, 3027, 3881 and 3929**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Morrison, Chair of the Committee on Health, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 88, 357, 1854, 3267, 3592, 3793, 3821, 3879 and 3995**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Morrison, Chair of the Committee on Health, to which was referred **House Bill No. 68**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bill, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Morrison, Chair of the Committee on Health, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendments, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 452

Senate Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 1926

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendments are eligible for consideration on second reading.

Senator T. Cullerton, Chair of the Committee on Veterans Affairs, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 3255, 3515 and 3865**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Bennett, Chair of the Committee on Higher Education, to which was referred **Senate Resolution No. 150**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the resolution be adopted.

Under the rules, **Senate Resolution No. 150** was placed on the Secretary's Desk.

Senator Bennett, Chair of the Committee on Higher Education, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 375, 3218, 3359 and 3950**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Bennett, Chair of the Committee on Higher Education, to which was referred **House Bill No. 2746**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bill, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Fine, Chair of the Committee on Behavioral and Mental Health, to which was referred **House Bill No. 212**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Fine, Chair of the Committee on Behavioral and Mental Health, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 2784 and 3911**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bills, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Fine, Chair of the Committee on Behavioral and Mental Health, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendment, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 2394

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendment is eligible for consideration on second reading.

Senator Connor, Chair of the Committee on Criminal Law, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendment, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 766

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendment is eligible for consideration on second reading.

Senator Connor, Chair of the Committee on Criminal Law, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 862, 2427, 3235, 3262, 3317, 3463, 3485, 3512, 3513, 3575, 3587, 3656, 3665, 3678, 3762 and 3854**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Connor, Chair of the Committee on Criminal Law, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 1765 and 3895**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bills, as amended, do pass.

[May 19, 2021]

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Holmes, Chair of the Committee on Labor, to which was referred **House Bill No. 2568**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Holmes, Chair of the Committee on Labor, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 816, 1207 and 3174**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bills, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Martwick, Chair of the Committee on Pensions, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 126, 232, 275, 417, 426, 2569, 3004 and 3474**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

### INTRODUCTION OF BILL

**SENATE BILL NO. 2901.** Introduced by Senator Gillespie, a bill for AN ACT concerning public aid.

The bill was taken up, read by title a first time, ordered printed and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

### APPOINTMENT MESSAGE

#### Appointment Message No. 1020178

To the Honorable Members of the Senate, One Hundred Second General Assembly:

I, Susanna Mendoza, Comptroller, am nominating and, having sought the advice of the Senate and by and with the consent of the Senate, appointing the following named individual to the office enumerated below. The consent of this Honorable Body is respectfully requested.

Title of Office: Member

Agency or Other Body: Merit Commission of the Office of the Comptroller

Start Date: May 17, 2021

End Date: January 17, 2022

Name: Mary Riseling

Residence: 816 W. Fayette Ave., Springfield, IL 62704

Annual Compensation: \$100 per meeting, per statute

Per diem: Not Applicable

Nominee's Senator: Senator Steve McClure

Most Recent Holder of Office: Ron Cooley

[May 19, 2021]

Superseded Appointment Message: AM 101-458

Under the rules, the foregoing Appointment Message was referred to the Committee on Executive Appointments.

At the hour of 12:19 o'clock p.m., the Honorable Don Harmon, President of the Senate, presiding.

**MOTION**

Senator Holmes moved that pursuant to Senate Rule 4-1(e), Senators Ellman and Harris be allowed to remotely participate and vote in today's session.

The motion prevailed.

At the hour of 12:22 o'clock p.m., Senator Holmes, presiding.

**LEGISLATIVE MEASURES FILED**

The following Floor amendment to the Senate Bill listed below has been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 4 to Senate Bill 818

The following Committee amendment to the House Bill listed below has been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 1879

**READING BILL FROM THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES A FIRST TIME**

**House Bill No. 2426**, sponsored by Senator Connor, was taken up, read by title a first time and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

**POSTING NOTICE WAIVED**

Senator Castro moved to waive the six-day posting requirement on **Senate Bill No. 1770** so that the measure may be heard in the Committee on Executive that is scheduled to meet May 19, 2021.

The motion prevailed.

**REPORT FROM COMMITTEE ON ASSIGNMENTS**

Senator Lightford, Chair of the Committee on Assignments, during its May 19, 2021 meeting, reported the following Legislative Measures have been assigned to the indicated Standing Committees of the Senate:

Executive: **Floor Amendment No. 4 to Senate Bill 818; Committee Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 292.**

Judiciary: **Committee Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3100; Committee Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3582.**

[May 19, 2021]



## HOUSE BILLS RECALLED

On motion of Senator Morrison, **House Bill No. 18** was recalled from the order of third reading to the order of second reading.

Senator Morrison offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

### AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL 18

AMENDMENT NO. 1 . Amend House Bill 18 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The School Code is amended by changing Sections 24A-5, 24A-7, and 34-85c as follows:  
(105 ILCS 5/24A-5) (from Ch. 122, par. 24A-5)

Sec. 24A-5. Content of evaluation plans. This Section does not apply to teachers assigned to schools identified in an agreement entered into between the board of a school district operating under Article 34 of this Code and the exclusive representative of the district's teachers in accordance with Section 34-85c of this Code.

Each school district to which this Article applies shall establish a teacher evaluation plan which ensures that each teacher in contractual continued service is evaluated at least once in the course of every 2 or 3 school years as provided in this Section.

~~Each By no later than September 1, 2012, each~~ school district shall establish a teacher evaluation plan that ensures that:

(1) each teacher not in contractual continued service is evaluated at least once every school year; and

(2) except as otherwise provided in this Section, each teacher in contractual continued service is evaluated at least once in the course of every 2 school years. However, any teacher in contractual continued service whose performance is rated as either "needs improvement" or "unsatisfactory" must be evaluated at least once in the school year following the receipt of such rating.

No later than September 1, 2022, each school district must establish a teacher evaluation plan that ensures that each teacher in contractual continued service whose performance is rated as either "excellent" or "proficient" is evaluated at least once in the course of the 3 school years after receipt of the rating and implement an informal teacher observation plan established by agency rule and by agreement of the joint committee established under subsection (b) of Section 24A-4 of this Code that ensures that each teacher in contractual continued service whose performance is rated as either "excellent" or "proficient" is informally observed at least once in the course of the 2 school years after receipt of the rating.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section or any other Section of the School Code, a principal shall not be prohibited from evaluating any teachers within a school during his or her first year as principal of such school. If a first-year principal exercises this option in a school district where the evaluation plan provides for a teacher in contractual continued service to be evaluated once in the course of every 2 or 3 school years, as applicable, then a new 2-year or 3-year evaluation plan must be established.

The evaluation plan shall comply with the requirements of this Section and of any rules adopted by the State Board of Education pursuant to this Section.

The plan shall include a description of each teacher's duties and responsibilities and of the standards to which that teacher is expected to conform, and shall include at least the following components:

(a) personal observation of the teacher in the classroom by the evaluator, unless the teacher has no classroom duties.

(b) consideration of the teacher's attendance, planning, instructional methods, classroom management, where relevant, and competency in the subject matter taught.

(c) by no later than the applicable implementation date, consideration of student growth as a significant factor in the rating of the teacher's performance.

(d) prior to September 1, 2012, rating of the performance of teachers in contractual continued service as either:

(i) "excellent", "satisfactory" or "unsatisfactory"; or

(ii) "excellent", "proficient", "needs improvement" or "unsatisfactory".

(e) on and after September 1, 2012, rating of the performance of all teachers as "excellent", "proficient", "needs improvement" or "unsatisfactory".

(f) specification as to the teacher's strengths and weaknesses, with supporting reasons for the comments made.

(g) inclusion of a copy of the evaluation in the teacher's personnel file and provision of a copy to the teacher.

(h) within 30 school days after the completion of an evaluation rating a teacher in contractual continued service as "needs improvement", development by the evaluator, in consultation with the teacher, and taking into account the teacher's on-going professional responsibilities including his or her regular teaching assignments, of a professional development plan directed to the areas that need improvement and any supports that the district will provide to address the areas identified as needing improvement.

(i) within 30 school days after completion of an evaluation rating a teacher in contractual continued service as "unsatisfactory", development and commencement by the district of a remediation plan designed to correct deficiencies cited, provided the deficiencies are deemed remediable. In all school districts the remediation plan for unsatisfactory, tenured teachers shall provide for 90 school days of remediation within the classroom, unless an applicable collective bargaining agreement provides for a shorter duration. In all school districts evaluations issued pursuant to this Section shall be issued within 10 days after the conclusion of the respective remediation plan. However, the school board or other governing authority of the district shall not lose jurisdiction to discharge a teacher in the event the evaluation is not issued within 10 days after the conclusion of the respective remediation plan.

(j) participation in the remediation plan by the teacher in contractual continued service rated "unsatisfactory", an evaluator and a consulting teacher selected by the evaluator of the teacher who was rated "unsatisfactory", which consulting teacher is an educational employee as defined in the Educational Labor Relations Act, has at least 5 years' teaching experience, and a reasonable familiarity with the assignment of the teacher being evaluated, and who received an "excellent" rating on his or her most recent evaluation. Where no teachers who meet these criteria are available within the district, the district shall request and the applicable regional office of education shall supply, to participate in the remediation process, an individual who meets these criteria.

In a district having a population of less than 500,000 with an exclusive bargaining agent, the bargaining agent may, if it so chooses, supply a roster of qualified teachers from whom the consulting teacher is to be selected. That roster shall, however, contain the names of at least 5 teachers, each of whom meets the criteria for consulting teacher with regard to the teacher being evaluated, or the names of all teachers so qualified if that number is less than 5. In the event of a dispute as to qualification, the State Board shall determine qualification.

(k) a mid-point and final evaluation by an evaluator during and at the end of the remediation period, immediately following receipt of a remediation plan provided for under subsections (i) and (j) of this Section. Each evaluation shall assess the teacher's performance during the time period since the prior evaluation; provided that the last evaluation shall also include an overall evaluation of the teacher's performance during the remediation period. A written copy of the evaluations and ratings, in which any deficiencies in performance and recommendations for correction are identified, shall be provided to and discussed with the teacher within 10 school days after the date of the evaluation, unless an applicable collective bargaining agreement provides to the contrary. These subsequent evaluations shall be conducted by an evaluator. The consulting teacher shall provide advice to the teacher rated "unsatisfactory" on how to improve teaching skills and to successfully complete the remediation plan. The consulting teacher shall participate in developing the remediation plan, but the final decision as to the evaluation shall be done solely by the evaluator, unless an applicable collective bargaining agreement provides to the contrary. Evaluations at the conclusion of the remediation process shall be separate and distinct from the required annual evaluations of teachers and shall not be subject to the guidelines and procedures relating to those annual evaluations. The evaluator may but is not required to use the forms provided for the annual evaluation of teachers in the district's evaluation plan.

(l) reinstatement to the evaluation schedule set forth in the district's evaluation plan for any teacher in contractual continued service who achieves a rating equal to or better than "satisfactory" or "proficient" in the school year following a rating of "needs improvement" or "unsatisfactory".

(m) dismissal in accordance with subsection (d) of Section 24-12 or Section 24-16.5 or 34-85 of this Code of any teacher who fails to complete any applicable remediation plan with a rating equal to

or better than a "satisfactory" or "proficient" rating. Districts and teachers subject to dismissal hearings are precluded from compelling the testimony of consulting teachers at such hearings under subsection (d) of Section 24-12 or Section 24-16.5 or 34-85 of this Code, either as to the rating process or for opinions of performances by teachers under remediation.

(n) After the implementation date of an evaluation system for teachers in a district as specified in Section 24A-2.5 of this Code, if a teacher in contractual continued service successfully completes a remediation plan following a rating of "unsatisfactory" in an ~~annual or biennial~~ overall performance evaluation received after the foregoing implementation date and receives a subsequent rating of "unsatisfactory" in any of the teacher's ~~annual or biennial~~ overall performance evaluation ratings received during the 36-month period following the teacher's completion of the remediation plan, then the school district may forego remediation and seek dismissal in accordance with subsection (d) of Section 24-12 or Section 34-85 of this Code.

Nothing in this Section or Section 24A-4 shall be construed as preventing immediate dismissal of a teacher for deficiencies which are deemed irremediable or for actions which are injurious to or endanger the health or person of students in the classroom or school, or preventing the dismissal or non-renewal of teachers not in contractual continued service for any reason not prohibited by applicable employment, labor, and civil rights laws. Failure to strictly comply with the time requirements contained in Section 24A-5 shall not invalidate the results of the remediation plan.

Nothing contained in this amendatory Act of the 98th General Assembly repeals, supersedes, invalidates, or nullifies final decisions in lawsuits pending on the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 98th General Assembly in Illinois courts involving the interpretation of Public Act 97-8.

If the Governor has declared a disaster due to a public health emergency pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act that suspends in-person instruction, the timelines in this Section connected to the commencement and completion of any remediation plan are waived. Except if the parties mutually agree otherwise and the agreement is in writing, any remediation plan that had been in place for more than 45 days prior to the suspension of in-person instruction shall resume when in-person instruction resumes and any remediation plan that had been in place for fewer than 45 days prior to the suspension of in-person instruction shall be discontinued and a new remediation period shall begin when in-person instruction resumes. The requirements of this paragraph apply regardless of whether they are included in a school district's teacher evaluation plan.

(Source: P.A. 101-643, eff. 6-18-20.)

(105 ILCS 5/24A-7) (from Ch. 122, par. 24A-7)

Sec. 24A-7. Rules. The State Board of Education is authorized to adopt such rules as are deemed necessary to implement and accomplish the purposes and provisions of this Article, including, but not limited to, rules:

(1) ~~(i)~~ relating to the methods for measuring student growth (including, but not limited to, limitations on the age of ~~usable~~ ~~useable~~ data; the amount of data needed to reliably and validly measure growth for the purpose of teacher and principal evaluations; and whether and at what time annual State assessments may be used as one of multiple measures of student growth);

(2) ~~(ii)~~ defining the term "significant factor" for purposes of including consideration of student growth in performance ratings;

(3) ~~(iii)~~ controlling for such factors as student characteristics (including, but not limited to, students receiving special education and English ~~Language~~ Learner services), student attendance, and student mobility so as to best measure the impact that a teacher, principal, school and school district has on students' academic achievement;

(4) ~~(iv)~~ establishing minimum requirements for district teacher and principal evaluation instruments and procedures; and

(5) ~~(v)~~ establishing a model evaluation plan for use by school districts in which student growth shall comprise 50% of the performance rating.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Section, such rules shall not preclude a school district having 500,000 or more inhabitants from using an annual State assessment as the sole measure of student growth for purposes of teacher or principal evaluations.

The State Superintendent of Education shall convene a Performance Evaluation Advisory Council, which shall be staffed by the State Board of Education. Members of the Council shall be selected by the State Superintendent and include, without limitation, representatives of teacher unions and school district management, persons with expertise in performance evaluation processes and systems, as well as other

stakeholders. The Council shall meet at least quarterly, and may also meet at the call of the chairperson of the Council, following August 18, 2017 (the effective date of Public Act 100-211) ~~this amendatory Act of the 100th General Assembly~~ until June 30, ~~2024~~ 2024. The Council shall advise the State Board of Education on the ongoing implementation of performance evaluations in this State, which may include gathering public feedback, sharing best practices, consulting with the State Board on any proposed rule changes regarding evaluations, and other subjects as determined by the chairperson of the Council.

Prior to the applicable implementation date, these rules shall not apply to teachers assigned to schools identified in an agreement entered into between the board of a school district operating under Article 34 of this Code and the exclusive representative of the district's teachers in accordance with Section 34-85c of this Code.

(Source: P.A. 100-211, eff. 8-18-17; revised 7-15-19.)

(105 ILCS 5/34-85c)

Sec. 34-85c. Alternative procedures for teacher evaluation, remediation, and removal for cause after remediation.

(a) Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the board and the exclusive representative of the district's teachers are hereby authorized to enter into an agreement to establish alternative procedures for teacher evaluation, remediation, and removal for cause after remediation, including an alternative system for peer evaluation and recommendations; provided, however, that no later than September 1, 2012: (i) any alternative procedures must include provisions whereby student performance data is a significant factor in teacher evaluation and (ii) teachers are rated as "excellent", "proficient", "needs improvement" or "unsatisfactory". Pursuant exclusively to that agreement, teachers assigned to schools identified in that agreement shall be subject to an alternative performance evaluation plan and remediation procedures in lieu of the plan and procedures set forth in Article 24A of this Code and alternative removal for cause standards and procedures in lieu of the removal standards and procedures set forth in Section 34-85 of this Code. To the extent that the agreement provides a teacher with an opportunity for a hearing on removal for cause before an independent hearing officer in accordance with Section 34-85 or otherwise, the hearing officer shall be governed by the alternative performance evaluation plan, remediation procedures, and removal standards and procedures set forth in the agreement in making findings of fact and a recommendation.

(a-5) If the Governor has declared a disaster due to a public health emergency pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act that suspends in-person instruction, the timelines connected to the commencement and completion of any remediation plan are paused. Except where the parties mutually agree otherwise and such agreement is in writing, any remediation plan that had been in place for 45 or more days prior to the suspension of in-person instruction shall resume when in-person instruction resumes; any remediation plan that had been in place for fewer than 45 days prior to the suspension of in-person instruction shall discontinue and a new remediation period will begin when in-person instruction resumes.

(a-10) No later than September 1, 2022, the school district must establish a teacher evaluation plan that ensures that each teacher in contractual continued service whose performance is rated as either "excellent" or "proficient" is evaluated at least once in the course of the 3 school years after receipt of the rating and establish an informal teacher observation plan that ensures that each teacher in contractual continued service whose performance is rated as either "excellent" or "proficient" is informally observed at least once in the course of the 2 school years after receipt of the rating.

(b) The board and the exclusive representative of the district's teachers shall submit a certified copy of an agreement as provided under subsection (a) of this Section to the State Board of Education.

(Source: P.A. 101-643, eff. 6-18-20)."

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Fine, **House Bill No. 452** was recalled from the order of third reading to the order of second reading.

Senator Fine offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

**AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL 452**

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 452 on page 1, immediately below line 3, by inserting the following:

"Section 3. The Illinois Commission on Volunteerism and Community Service Act is amended by changing Sections 1, 6.1, and 7 as follows:

(20 ILCS 2330/1) (was 20 ILCS 710/1)

Sec. 1. Creation. There is created in the Department of Human Services ~~Public Health~~ the Illinois Commission on Volunteerism and Community Service.

(Source: P.A. 98-692, eff. 7-1-14.)

(20 ILCS 2330/6.1) (was 20 ILCS 710/6.1)

Sec. 6.1. Functions of Commission. The Commission shall meet at least quarterly and shall advise and consult with the Department of Human Services ~~Public Health~~ and the Governor's Office on all matters relating to community service in Illinois. In addition, the Commission shall have the following duties:

(a) prepare a 3-year State service plan, developed through an open, public process and updated annually;

(b) prepare the financial assistance applications of the State under the National and Community Service Trust Fund Act of 1993, as amended by the Serve America Act;

(c) assist in the preparation of the application by the State Board of Education for assistance under that Act;

(d) prepare the State's application under that Act for the approval of national service positions;

(e) assist in the provision of health care and child care benefits under that Act;

(f) develop a State recruitment, placement, and information dissemination system for participants in programs that receive assistance under the national service laws;

(g) administer the State's grant program including selection, oversight, and evaluation of grant recipients;

(h) make technical assistance available to enable applicants to plan and implement service programs and to apply for assistance under the national service laws;

(i) develop projects, training methods, curriculum materials, and other activities related to service;

(j) coordinate its functions with any division of the federal Corporation for National and Community Service outlined in the National and Community Service Trust Fund Act of 1993, as amended by the Serve America Act;

(k) publicize Commission services and promote community involvement in the activities of the Commission;

(l) promote increased visibility and support for volunteers of all ages, especially youth and senior citizens, and community service in meeting the needs of Illinois residents; and

(m) represent the Department of Human Services ~~Public Health~~ and the Governor's Office on such occasions and in such manner as the Department may provide.

(Source: P.A. 98-692, eff. 7-1-14; 99-78, eff. 7-20-15.)

(20 ILCS 2330/7) (was 20 ILCS 710/7)

Sec. 7. Program transfer. On the effective date of this amendatory Act of the ~~102nd~~ <sup>98th</sup> General Assembly, the authority, powers, and duties in this Act of the Department of Public Health ~~Human Services~~ are transferred to the Department of Human Services ~~Public Health~~"; and

(Source: P.A. 98-692, eff. 7-1-14.)

on page 47, by replacing lines 2 and 3 with the following:

"Section 95. Illinois Compiled Statutes reassignment. The Legislative Reference Bureau shall reassign the following Act to the specified location in the Illinois Compiled Statutes and file appropriate documents with the Index Division of the Office of the Secretary of State in accordance with subsection (c) of Section 5.04 of the Legislative Reference Bureau Act:

Illinois Commission on Volunteerism and Community Service Act, reassigned from 20 ILCS 2330/ to 20 ILCS 1345/.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law, except that Sections 3 and 95 take effect January 1, 2022."

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Morrison, **House Bill No. 1926** was recalled from the order of third reading to the order of second reading.

Senator Morrison offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

**AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL 1926**

AMENDMENT NO. 1 . Amend House Bill 1926 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Counties Code is amended by changing Section 5-25010 as follows:

(55 ILCS 5/5-25010) (from Ch. 34, par. 5-25010)

Sec. 5-25010. Annual tax levy. The county board of any county which has established and is maintaining a county or multiple-county health department shall, when authorized as provided in Sections 5-25003 or 5-25004, levy annually therefor, in excess of the statutory limit, a tax of not to exceed .1% of the value plus the additional tax, if applicable, provided for in Section 5-23002, ~~or plus the additional tax, if applicable, provided for in Section 5.3 of "An Act to provide for the creation and management of tuberculosis sanitarium districts", approved May 21, 1937, as now or hereafter amended,~~ as equalized or assessed by the Department of Revenue, of all taxable property of the county, which tax shall be levied and collected in like manner as general county taxes and shall be paid (except as provided in Section 5-25011) into the county treasury and held in the County Health Fund and shall be used only for the purposes of this Division. Where there is a county health department, the County Health Fund shall be drawn upon by the proper officers of the county upon the properly authenticated vouchers of the county health department. Where there is a multiple-county health department, the County Health Fund shall be drawn upon by the treasurer of the board of health of the multiple-county health department. In counties maintaining single county health departments, each county board shall appropriate from the County Health Fund such sums of money as may be sufficient to fund the approved budget of the county health department, so long as those sums have been set out in the annual budget submitted to the county board by the county board of health and that annual budget has been approved by the county board. In counties with a population between 700,000 and 3,000,000, the county board chairman has the power to veto or reduce any line item in the appropriation ordinance for the county or multiple-county health department as provided in Section 5-1014.5. Each county board of counties participating in the maintenance of a multiple-county health department shall appropriate from the County Health Fund and shall authorize the county treasurer to release quarterly or more often to the treasurer of the board of health of the multiple-county health department such sums of money as are in accordance with the budget submitted by the multiple-county board of health and approved by the county board of each of the participating counties as may be necessary to pay its agreed share for the maintenance of the multiple-county health department. The treasurer of the board of health of the multiple-county health department shall request by voucher, quarterly or more often such sums of money from the county treasurers of the respective member counties, and shall support such requests with estimates of anticipated receipts and expenditures for the period for which sums of money are requested and with statements of receipts and expenditures for the preceding period. In addition, that treasurer shall support the requests to the annual budget submitted by the multiple-county public health board and approved by the county board of each of the participating counties. No payment may be made from a County Health Fund except on the basis of a budget item in a budget submitted by the appropriate public health board and approved by the county board or boards concerned; however, amended or supplemental budgets may be submitted and approved and thereby be the basis for such a payment.

(Source: P.A. 89-402, eff. 8-20-95.)

Section 10. The Illinois Municipal Code is amended by changing Sections 8-3-1, 8-4-1, and 8-4-25 as follows:

(65 ILCS 5/8-3-1) (from Ch. 24, par. 8-3-1)

[May 19, 2021]

Sec. 8-3-1. The corporate authorities may levy and collect taxes for corporate purposes. They shall do this in the following manner:

On or before the last Tuesday in December in each year, the corporate authorities shall ascertain the total amount of appropriations legally made or budgeted for and any amount deemed necessary to defray additional expenses and liabilities for all corporate purposes to be provided for by the tax levy of that year. Then, by an ordinance specifying in detail in the manner authorized for the annual appropriation ordinance or budget of the municipality, the purposes for which the appropriations, budgeting or such additional amounts deemed necessary have been made and the amount assignable for each purpose respectively, the corporate authorities shall levy upon all property subject to taxation within the municipality as that property is assessed and equalized for state and county purposes for the current year.

A certified copy of this ordinance shall be filed with the county clerk of the proper county. He shall ascertain the rate per cent which, upon the value of all property subject to taxation within the municipality, as that property is assessed or equalized by the Department of Revenue, will produce a net amount of not less than the total amount so directed to be levied. The county clerk shall extend this tax in a separate column upon the books of the collector of state and county taxes within the municipality.

However, in ascertaining the rate per cent in municipalities having a population of 500,000 or more, the county clerk shall not add to the amount of the tax so levied for any purpose any amount to cover the loss and cost of collecting the tax, except in the case of amounts levied for the payment of bonded indebtedness, or interest thereon, and in the case of amounts levied for the purposes of pension funds.

Where the corporate limits of a municipality lie partly in 2 or more counties, the corporate authorities shall ascertain the total amount of all taxable property lying within the corporate limits of that municipality in each county, as the property is assessed or equalized by the Department of Revenue for the current year, and shall certify the amount of taxable property in each county within that municipality under the seal of the municipality, to the county clerk of the county where the seat of government of the municipality is situated. That county clerk shall ascertain the rate per cent which, upon the total valuation of all property subject to taxation within that municipality, ascertained as provided in this Section, will produce a net amount not less than the total amount directed to be levied. As soon as that rate per cent is ascertained, that clerk shall certify the rate per cent under his signature and seal of office to the county clerk of each other county wherein a portion of that municipality is situated. A county clerk to whom a rate per cent is certified shall extend the tax in a separate column upon the books of the collector of state and county taxes for his county against all property in his county within the limits of that municipality.

But in municipalities with 500,000 or more inhabitants, the aggregate amount of taxes so levied exclusive of the amount levied for the payment of bonded indebtedness, or interest thereon, and exclusive of taxes levied for the payment of judgments, for which a special tax is authorized by law, and exclusive of the amounts levied for the purposes of pension funds, working cash fund, public library, ~~municipal tuberculosis sanitarium~~, the propagation and preservation of community trees, and exclusive of taxes levied pursuant to Section 19 of the Illinois Emergency Services and Disaster Agency Act of 1975 and for the general assistance for needy persons lawfully resident therein, shall not exceed the estimated amount of taxes to be levied for each year for the purposes specified in Sections 8-2-2 through 8-2-5 and set forth in its annual appropriation ordinance and in any supplemental appropriation ordinance authorized by law for that year.

In municipalities with less than 500,000 inhabitants, the aggregate amount of taxes so levied for any one year, exclusive of the amount levied for the payment of bonded indebtedness, or interest thereon, and exclusive of taxes levied pursuant to Section 13 of the Illinois Civil Defense Act of 1951 and exclusive of taxes authorized by this Code or other Acts which by their terms provide that those taxes shall be in addition to taxes for general purposes authorized under this Section, shall not exceed the rate of .25%, or the rate limit in effect on July 1, 1967, whichever is greater, and on a permanent basis, upon the aggregate valuation of all property within the municipality subject to taxation therein, as the property is equalized or assessed by the Department of Revenue for the current year. However, if the maximum rate of such municipality for general corporate purposes is less than .20% on July 1, 1967, the corporate authorities may, without referendum, increase such maximum rate not to exceed .25%; but such maximum rate shall not be raised by more than 1/2 of such increase in any one year.

However, if the corporate authorities of a municipality with less than 500,000 inhabitants desire to levy in any one year more than .25%, or the rate limit in effect on July 1, 1967, whichever is greater, and on a permanent basis, but not more than .4375% for general corporate purposes, exclusive of the amount levied for the payment of bonded indebtedness, or interest thereon, and exclusive of taxes authorized by this Code or other Acts which by their terms provide that those taxes shall be in addition to taxes for general purposes

authorized under this Section the corporate authorities, by ordinance, stating the per cent so desired, may order a proposition for the additional amount to be submitted to the electors of that municipality at any election. The clerk shall certify the proposition to the proper election authority who shall submit the question to the electors at such election. If a majority of the votes cast on the proposition are in favor of the proposition, the corporate authorities of that municipality may levy annually for general corporate purposes, exclusive of the amount levied for the payment of bonded indebtedness, or interest thereon, and exclusive of taxes authorized by this Code or other Acts which by their terms provide that those taxes are in addition to taxes for general purposes authorized under this Section a tax in excess of .25%, or the rate in effect on July 1, 1967, whichever is greater, and on a permanent basis, but not exceeding the per cent mentioned in the proposition.

Any municipality voting after August 1, 1969, to increase its rate limitation for general corporate purposes under this Section shall establish such increased rate limitation on an ongoing basis unless otherwise changed by referendum.

In municipalities that are not home rule units, any funds on hand at the end of the fiscal year, which funds are not pledged for or allocated to a particular purpose, may by action of the corporate authorities be transferred to the capital improvement fund and accumulated therein, but the total amount accumulated in such fund may not exceed 3% of the aggregate assessed valuation of all taxable property in the municipality. (Source: P.A. 87-17.)

(65 ILCS 5/8-4-1) (from Ch. 24, par. 8-4-1)

Sec. 8-4-1. No bonds shall be issued by the corporate authorities of any municipality until the question of authorizing such bonds has been submitted to the electors of that municipality provided that notice of the bond referendum, if held before July 1, 1999, has been given in accordance with the provisions of Section 12-5 of the Election Code in effect at the time of the bond referendum, at least 10 and not more than 45 days before the date of the election, notwithstanding the time for publication otherwise imposed by Section 12-5, and approved by a majority of the electors voting upon that question. Notices required in connection with the submission of public questions on or after July 1, 1999 shall be as set forth in Section 12-5 of the Election Code. The clerk shall certify the proposition of the corporate authorities to the proper election authority who shall submit the question at an election in accordance with the general election law, subject to the notice provisions set forth in this Section.

Notice of any such election shall contain the amount of the bond issue, purpose for which issued, and maximum rate of interest.

In addition to all other authority to issue bonds, the Village of Indian Head Park is authorized to issue bonds for the purpose of paying the costs of making roadway improvements in an amount not to exceed the aggregate principal amount of \$2,500,000, provided that 60% of the votes cast at the general primary election held on March 18, 2014 are cast in favor of the issuance of the bonds, and the bonds are issued by December 31, 2014.

However, without the submission of the question of issuing bonds to the electors, the corporate authorities of any municipality may authorize the issuance of any of the following bonds:

- (1) Bonds to refund any existing bonded indebtedness;
- (2) Bonds to fund or refund any existing judgment indebtedness;
- (3) In any municipality of less than 500,000 population, bonds to anticipate the collection of installments of special assessments and special taxes against property owned by the municipality and to anticipate the collection of the amount apportioned to the municipality as public benefits under Article 9;
- (4) Bonds issued by any municipality under Sections 8-4-15 through 8-4-23, 11-23-1 through 11-23-12, ~~11-26-1 through 11-25-1~~ through 11-26-6, 11-71-1 through 11-71-10, 11-74.3-1 through 11-74.3-7, 11-74.4-1 through 11-74.4-11, 11-74.5-1 through 11-74.5-15, 11-94-1 through 11-94-7, 11-102-1 through 11-102-10, 11-103-11 through 11-103-15, 11-118-1 through 11-118-6, 11-119-1 through 11-119-5, 11-129-1 through 11-129-7, 11-133-1 through 11-133-4, 11-139-1 through 11-139-12, 11-141-1 through 11-141-18 of this Code or 10-801 through 10-808 of the Illinois Highway Code, as amended;
- (5) Bonds issued by the board of education of any school district under the provisions of Sections 34-30 through 34-36 of The School Code, as amended;
- (6) Bonds issued by any municipality under the provisions of Division 6 of this Article 8; and by any municipality under the provisions of Division 7 of this Article 8; or under the provisions of Sections 11-121-4 and 11-121-5;



(7) Bonds to pay for the purchase of voting machines by any municipality that has adopted Article 24 of The Election Code, approved May 11, 1943, as amended;

(8) Bonds issued by any municipality under Sections 15 and 46 of the "Environmental Protection Act", approved June 29, 1970;

(9) Bonds issued by the corporate authorities of any municipality under the provisions of Section 8-4-25 of this Article 8;

(10) Bonds issued under Section 8-4-26 of this Article 8 by any municipality having a board of election commissioners;

(11) Bonds issued under the provisions of "An Act to provide the manner of levying or imposing taxes for the provision of special services to areas within the boundaries of home rule units and nonhome rule municipalities and counties", approved September 21, 1973;

(12) Bonds issued under Section 8-5-16 of this Code;

(13) Bonds to finance the cost of the acquisition, construction or improvement of water or wastewater treatment facilities mandated by an enforceable compliance schedule developed in connection with the federal Clean Water Act or a compliance order issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency or the Illinois Pollution Control Board; provided that such bonds are authorized by an ordinance adopted by a three-fifths majority of the corporate authorities of the municipality issuing the bonds which ordinance shall specify that the construction or improvement of such facilities is necessary to alleviate an emergency condition in such municipality;

(14) Bonds issued by any municipality pursuant to Section 11-113.1-1;

(15) Bonds issued under Sections 11-74.6-1 through 11-74.6-45, the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law of this Code;

(16) Bonds issued under the Innovation Development and Economy Act, except as may be required by Section 35 of that Act.

(Source: P.A. 97-333, eff. 8-12-11; 98-654, eff. 6-18-14.)

(65 ILCS 5/8-4-25) (from Ch. 24, par. 8-4-25)

Sec. 8-4-25. Subject to the requirements of the Bond Issue Notification Act, any municipality is authorized to issue from time to time full faith and credit general obligation notes in an amount not to exceed 85% of the specific taxes levied for the year during which and for which such notes are issued, provided no notes shall be issued in lieu of tax warrants for any tax at any time there are outstanding tax anticipation warrants against the specific taxes levied for the year. Such notes shall bear interest at a rate not to exceed the maximum rate authorized by the Bond Authorization Act, as amended at the time of the making of the contract, if issued before January 1, 1972 and not more than the maximum rate authorized by the Bond Authorization Act, as amended at the time of the making of the contract, if issued after January 1, 1972 and shall mature within two years from date. The first interest payment date on any such notes shall not be earlier than the delinquency date of the first installment of taxes levied to pay interest and principal of such notes. Notes may be issued for taxes levied for the following purposes:

- (a) Corporate.
- (b) For the payment of judgments.
- (c) Public Library for Maintenance and Operation.
- (d) Public Library for Buildings and Sites.
- (e) ~~Blank. Municipal Tuberculosis Sanitarium.~~
- (f) Relief (General Assistance).

In order to authorize and issue such notes, the corporate authorities shall adopt an ordinance fixing the amount of the notes, the date thereof, the maturity, rate of interest, place of payment and denomination, which shall be in equal multiples of \$1,000, and provide for the levy and collection of a direct annual tax upon all the taxable property in the municipality sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such notes as the same becomes due.

A certified copy of the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the notes shall be filed in the office of the County Clerk of the county in which the municipality is located, or if the municipality lies partly within two or more counties, a certified copy of the ordinance authorizing such notes shall be filed with the County Clerk of each of the respective counties, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk, or County Clerks, whichever the case may be, to extend the tax therefor in addition to and in excess of all other taxes heretofore or hereafter authorized to be levied by such municipality.

From and after any such notes have been issued and while such notes are outstanding, it shall be the duty of the County Clerk or County Clerks, whichever the case may be, in computing the tax rate for the

purpose for which the notes have been issued to reduce the tax rate levied for such purpose by the amount levied to pay the principal of and interest on the notes to maturity, provided the tax rate shall not be reduced beyond the amount necessary to reimburse any money borrowed from the working cash fund, and it shall be the duty of the Clerk of the municipality annually, not less than thirty (30) days prior to the tax extension date, to certify to the County Clerk, or County Clerks, whichever the case may be, the amount of money borrowed from the working cash fund to be reimbursed from the specific tax levy.

No reimbursement shall be made to the working cash fund until there has been accumulated from the tax levy provided for the notes an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such notes as the same become due.

With respect to instruments for the payment of money issued under this Section either before, on, or after the effective date of this amendatory Act of 1989, it is and always has been the intention of the General Assembly (i) that the Omnibus Bond Acts are and always have been supplementary grants of power to issue instruments in accordance with the Omnibus Bond Acts, regardless of any provision of this Act that may appear to be or to have been more restrictive than those Acts, (ii) that the provisions of this Section are not a limitation on the supplementary authority granted by the Omnibus Bond Acts, and (iii) that instruments issued under this Section within the supplementary authority granted by the Omnibus Bond Acts are not invalid because of any provision of this Act that may appear to be or to have been more restrictive than those Acts.

(Source: P.A. 89-655, eff. 1-1-97.)

(65 ILCS 5/Art. 11 Div. 25 rep.)

(65 ILCS 5/Art. 11 Div. 29 rep.)

Section 15. The Illinois Municipal Code is amended by repealing Divisions 25 and 29 of Article 11.

Section 20. The Tuberculosis Sanitarium District Act is amended by changing Section 1 as follows:

(70 ILCS 920/1) (from Ch. 23, par. 1701)

Sec. 1. Any area of contiguous territory lying wholly within one county ~~but entirely outside the corporate limits of any city or village which has adopted Division 29 of Article 11 of the "Illinois Municipal Code", approved May 29, 1961, as amended,~~ may be incorporated as a tuberculosis sanitarium district in the following manner, to wit:

Any 100 legal voters residing within the limits of such proposed district may petition the circuit court for the county in which such proposed district lies, to cause the question to be submitted to the legal voters of such proposed district whether or not it shall be organized as a tuberculosis sanitarium district under this Act. Such petition shall be addressed to the court and shall contain a definite description of the territory intended to be embraced in such district, and the name of such district. Upon the filing of such petition in the office of the clerk of the court of the county in which such territory is situated, it shall be the duty of such court to fix a day and hour for the public consideration thereof, which shall not be less than 15 days after the filing of such petition. Such court shall cause a notice of the time and place of such public consideration to be published 3 successive days in some newspaper having a general circulation in the territory proposed to be placed in such district. The date of the last publication of such notice shall not be less than 5 days prior to the time set for such public hearing. At the time and place fixed for such public hearing the court shall sit and hear any resident or person owning property in such proposed district who desires to be heard, and if the court finds that all of the provisions of this Act have been complied with, it shall cause to be entered of record, an order fixing and defining the boundaries and the name of such proposed district in accordance with the prayer of the petition. In the event that any other petition or petitions for the organization of a tuberculosis sanitarium district or districts in the same county shall be filed under this Act before the time fixed for the public hearing of the first petition, the court shall postpone the public consideration of the first petition so that the hearing of all said petitions shall be set for the same day and hour.

Should 2 or more petitions be filed under this Act and come on for hearing at the same time and it shall be found by the court that any of the territory embraced in any one of said petitions is included in or contiguous with the territory embraced in any other petition or petitions, the court may include all of the territory described in such petitions in one district and shall fix the name proposed in the petition first filed as the name for said district. After the entry of the order fixing and defining the boundaries and the name of such proposed district, it shall be the duty of the clerk of the circuit court to certify the order and the proposition to the proper election officials, who shall submit the proposition to the voters at an election in

[May 19, 2021]

accordance with the general election law. In addition to the requirements of the general election law, the notice of the referendum shall contain a definite description of the territory intended to be embraced in such district, and the name of such district.  
(Source: P.A. 83-343.)

(70 ILCS 920/5.3 rep.)

Section 25. The Tuberculosis Sanitarium District Act is amended by repealing Section 5.3."

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Fine, **House Bill No. 2394** was recalled from the order of third reading to the order of second reading.

Senator Fine offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

**AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL 2394**

AMENDMENT NO. 1 . Amend House Bill 2394 on page 1, lines 20 and 21, by replacing "data" each time it appears with "de-identified aggregate data"; and

on page 2, by inserting below line 21 the following:

"(d) As used in this Section, "substance use disorder" has the meaning provided in Section 1-10 of the Substance Use Disorder Act".

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Villivalam, **House Bill No. 376** was recalled from the order of third reading to the order of second reading.

Senator Villivalam offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

**AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO HOUSE BILL 376**

AMENDMENT NO. 2 . Amend House Bill 376 as follows:

on page 1, line 5, by deleting "and by changing Section 27-21"; and

by deleting line 13 on page 2 through line 9 on page 4.

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

**POSTING NOTICE WAIVED**

Senator Hastings moved to waive the six-day posting requirement on **House Bills numbered 2379 and 3702** so that the measures may be heard in the Committee on Energy and Public Utilities that is scheduled to meet May 20, 2021.

The motion prevailed.

**SENATE BILL RECALLED**

On motion of Senator Murphy, **Senate Bill No. 633** was recalled from the order of third reading to the order of second reading.

Senator Murphy offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

**AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO SENATE BILL 633**

AMENDMENT NO. 2 . Amend Senate Bill 633 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The School Code is amended by changing Section 10-17a as follows:

(105 ILCS 5/10-17a) (from Ch. 122, par. 10-17a)

Sec. 10-17a. State, school district, and school report cards.

(1) By October 31, 2013 and October 31 of each subsequent school year, the State Board of Education, through the State Superintendent of Education, shall prepare a State report card, school district report cards, and school report cards, and shall by the most economic means provide to each school district in this State, including special charter districts and districts subject to the provisions of Article 34, the report cards for the school district and each of its schools.

(2) In addition to any information required by federal law, the State Superintendent shall determine the indicators and presentation of the school report card, which must include, at a minimum, the most current data collected and maintained by the State Board of Education related to the following:

(A) school characteristics and student demographics, including average class size, average teaching experience, student racial/ethnic breakdown, and the percentage of students classified as low-income; the percentage of students classified as English learners; the percentage of students who have individualized education plans or 504 plans that provide for special education services; the number and percentage of all students who have been assessed for placement in a gifted education or advanced academic program and, of those students: (i) the racial and ethnic breakdown, (ii) the percentage who are classified as low-income, and (iii) the number and percentage of students who received direct instruction from a teacher who holds a gifted education endorsement and, of those students, the percentage who are classified as low-income; the percentage of students scoring at the "exceeds expectations" level on the assessments required under Section 2-3.64a-5 of this Code; the percentage of students who annually transferred in or out of the school district; average daily attendance; the per-pupil operating expenditure of the school district; and the per-pupil State average operating expenditure for the district type (elementary, high school, or unit);

(B) curriculum information, including, where applicable, Advanced Placement, International Baccalaureate or equivalent courses, dual enrollment courses, foreign language classes, computer science courses, school personnel resources (including Career Technical Education teachers), before and after school programs, extracurricular activities, subjects in which elective classes are offered, health and wellness initiatives (including the average number of days of Physical Education per week per student), approved programs of study, awards received, community partnerships, and special programs such as programming for the gifted and talented, students with disabilities, and work-study students;

(C) student outcomes, including, where applicable, the percentage of students deemed proficient on assessments of State standards, the percentage of students in the eighth grade who pass Algebra, the percentage of students who participated in workplace learning experiences, the percentage of students enrolled in post-secondary institutions (including colleges, universities, community colleges, trade/vocational schools, and training programs leading to career certification within 2 semesters of high school graduation), the percentage of students graduating from high school who are college and career ready, and the percentage of graduates enrolled in community colleges, colleges, and universities who are in one or more courses that the community college, college, or university identifies as a developmental course;

(D) student progress, including, where applicable, the percentage of students in the ninth grade who have earned 5 credits or more without failing more than one core class, a measure of students entering kindergarten ready to learn, a measure of growth, and the percentage of students who enter high school on track for college and career readiness;

(E) the school environment, including, where applicable, the percentage of students with less than 10 absences in a school year, the percentage of teachers with less than 10 absences in a school year for reasons other than professional development, leaves taken pursuant to the federal Family Medical Leave Act of 1993, long-term disability, or parental leaves, the 3-year average of the percentage of teachers returning to the school from the previous year, the number of different

principals at the school in the last 6 years, the number of teachers who hold a gifted education endorsement, the process and criteria used by the district to determine whether a student is eligible for participation in a gifted education program or advanced academic program and the manner in which parents and guardians are made aware of the process and criteria, 2 or more indicators from any school climate survey selected or approved by the State and administered pursuant to Section 2-3.153 of this Code, with the same or similar indicators included on school report cards for all surveys selected or approved by the State pursuant to Section 2-3.153 of this Code, ~~and~~ the combined percentage of teachers rated as proficient or excellent in their most recent evaluation, and, beginning with the 2022-2023 school year, data on the number of incidents of violence that occurred on school grounds or during school-related activities and that resulted in an out-of-school suspension, expulsion, or removal to an alternative setting, as reported pursuant to Section 2-3.162;

(F) a school district's and its individual schools' balanced accountability measure, in accordance with Section 2-3.25a of this Code;

(G) the total and per pupil normal cost amount the State contributed to the Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Illinois in the prior fiscal year for the school's employees, which shall be reported to the State Board of Education by the Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Illinois;

(H) for a school district organized under Article 34 of this Code only, State contributions to the Public School Teachers' Pension and Retirement Fund of Chicago and State contributions for health care for employees of that school district;

(I) a school district's Final Percent of Adequacy, as defined in paragraph (4) of subsection (f) of Section 18-8.15 of this Code;

(J) a school district's Local Capacity Target, as defined in paragraph (2) of subsection (c) of Section 18-8.15 of this Code, displayed as a percentage amount;

(K) a school district's Real Receipts, as defined in paragraph (1) of subsection (d) of Section 18-8.15 of this Code, divided by a school district's Adequacy Target, as defined in paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of Section 18-8.15 of this Code, displayed as a percentage amount;

(L) a school district's administrative costs;

(M) whether or not the school has participated in the Illinois Youth Survey. In this paragraph (M), "Illinois Youth Survey" means a self-report survey, administered in school settings every 2 years, designed to gather information about health and social indicators, including substance abuse patterns and the attitudes of students in grades 8, 10, and 12; and

(N) whether the school offered its students career and technical education opportunities.

The school report card shall also provide information that allows for comparing the current outcome, progress, and environment data to the State average, to the school data from the past 5 years, and to the outcomes, progress, and environment of similar schools based on the type of school and enrollment of low-income students, special education students, and English learners.

As used in this subsection (2):

"Administrative costs" means costs associated with executive, administrative, or managerial functions within the school district that involve planning, organizing, managing, or directing the school district.

"Advanced academic program" means a course of study to which students are assigned based on advanced cognitive ability or advanced academic achievement compared to local age peers and in which the curriculum is substantially differentiated from the general curriculum to provide appropriate challenge and pace.

"Computer science" means the study of computers and algorithms, including their principles, their hardware and software designs, their implementation, and their impact on society. "Computer science" does not include the study of everyday uses of computers and computer applications, such as keyboarding or accessing the Internet.

"Gifted education" means educational services, including differentiated curricula and instructional methods, designed to meet the needs of gifted children as defined in Article 14A of this Code.

For the purposes of paragraph (A) of this subsection (2), "average daily attendance" means the average of the actual number of attendance days during the previous school year for any enrolled student who is subject to compulsory attendance by Section 26-1 of this Code at each school and charter school.

(3) At the discretion of the State Superintendent, the school district report card shall include a subset of the information identified in paragraphs (A) through (E) of subsection (2) of this Section, as well as information relating to the operating expense per pupil and other finances of the school district, and the State report card shall include a subset of the information identified in paragraphs (A) through (E) and

paragraph (N) of subsection (2) of this Section. The school district report card shall include the average daily attendance, as that term is defined in subsection (2) of this Section, of students who have individualized education programs and students who have 504 plans that provide for special education services within the school district.

(4) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section, in consultation with key education stakeholders, the State Superintendent shall at any time have the discretion to amend or update any and all metrics on the school, district, or State report card.

(5) Annually, no more than 30 calendar days after receipt of the school district and school report cards from the State Superintendent of Education, each school district, including special charter districts and districts subject to the provisions of Article 34, shall present such report cards at a regular school board meeting subject to applicable notice requirements, post the report cards on the school district's Internet web site, if the district maintains an Internet web site, make the report cards available to a newspaper of general circulation serving the district, and, upon request, send the report cards home to a parent (unless the district does not maintain an Internet web site, in which case the report card shall be sent home to parents without request). If the district posts the report card on its Internet web site, the district shall send a written notice home to parents stating (i) that the report card is available on the web site, (ii) the address of the web site, (iii) that a printed copy of the report card will be sent to parents upon request, and (iv) the telephone number that parents may call to request a printed copy of the report card.

(6) Nothing contained in Public Act 98-648 repeals, supersedes, invalidates, or nullifies final decisions in lawsuits pending on July 1, 2014 (the effective date of Public Act 98-648) in Illinois courts involving the interpretation of Public Act 97-8. (Source: P.A. 100-227, eff. 8-18-17; 100-364, eff. 1-1-18; 100-448, eff. 7-1-19; 100-465, eff. 8-31-17; 100-807, eff. 8-10-18; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1121, eff. 1-1-19; 101-68, eff. 1-1-20; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19; 101-654, eff. 3-8-21)."

The motion prevailed.

And the amendment was adopted and ordered printed.

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 2 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

### READING BILL OF THE SENATE A THIRD TIME

On motion of Senator Murphy, **Senate Bill No. 633** having been transcribed and typed and all amendments adopted thereto having been printed, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 55; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Anderson	Curran	Lightford	Stadelman
Aquino	DeWitte	Loughran Cappel	Stewart
Bailey	Feigenholtz	Martwick	Stoller
Barickman	Fine	McClure	Syverson
Belt	Fowler	McConchie	Tracy
Bennett	Gillespie	Morrison	Turner, D.
Bryant	Glowiak Hilton	Muñoz	Turner, S.
Bush	Harris	Pacione-Zayas	Van Pelt
Castro	Hastings	Peters	Villa
Collins	Holmes	Plummer	Villanueva
Connor	Hunter	Rezin	Villivalam
Crowe	Johnson	Rose	Wilcox
Cullerton, T.	Joyce	Simmons	Mr. President
Cunningham	Koehler	Sims	

[May 19, 2021]

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence therein.

Senator Murphy asked and obtained unanimous consent for the Journal to reflect her intention to have voted in the affirmative on **Senate Bill No. 633**.

### READING BILL OF THE SENATE A SECOND TIME

On motion of Senator Tracy, **Senate Bill No. 2158** having been printed, was taken up, read by title a second time.

Committee Amendment No. 1 was held in the Committee on Assignments.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Insurance, adopted and ordered printed:

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO SENATE BILL 2158

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 2158 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 is amended by changing Section 6.11 as follows:

(5 ILCS 375/6.11)

Sec. 6.11. Required health benefits; Illinois Insurance Code requirements. The program of health benefits shall provide the post-mastectomy care benefits required to be covered by a policy of accident and health insurance under Section 356t of the Illinois Insurance Code. The program of health benefits shall provide the coverage required under Sections 356g, 356g.5, 356g.5-1, 356m, 356u, 356w, 356x, 356z.2, 356z.4, 356z.4a, 356z.6, 356z.8, 356z.9, 356z.10, 356z.11, 356z.12, 356z.13, 356z.14, 356z.15, 356z.17, 356z.22, 356z.25, 356z.26, 356z.29, 356z.30a, 356z.32, 356z.33, 356z.36, ~~and~~ 356z.41, ~~and~~ 356z.43 of the Illinois Insurance Code. The program of health benefits must comply with Sections 155.22a, 155.37, 355b, 356z.19, 370c, and 370c.1 and Article XXXIIB of the Illinois Insurance Code. The Department of Insurance shall enforce the requirements of this Section with respect to Sections 370c and 370c.1 of the Illinois Insurance Code; all other requirements of this Section shall be enforced by the Department of Central Management Services.

Rulemaking authority to implement Public Act 95-1045, if any, is conditioned on the rules being adopted in accordance with all provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act and all rules and procedures of the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules; any purported rule not so adopted, for whatever reason, is unauthorized.

(Source: P.A. 100-24, eff. 7-18-17; 100-138, eff. 8-18-17; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1024, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1057, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1102, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1170, eff. 6-1-19; 101-13, eff. 6-12-19; 101-281, eff. 1-1-20; 101-393, eff. 1-1-20; 101-452, eff. 1-1-20; 101-461, eff. 1-1-20; 101-625, eff. 1-1-21.)

Section 10. The Counties Code is amended by changing Section 5-1069.3 as follows:

(55 ILCS 5/5-1069.3)

Sec. 5-1069.3. Required health benefits. If a county, including a home rule county, is a self-insurer for purposes of providing health insurance coverage for its employees, the coverage shall include coverage for the post-mastectomy care benefits required to be covered by a policy of accident and health insurance under Section 356t and the coverage required under Sections 356g, 356g.5, 356g.5-1, 356u, 356w, 356x, 356z.6, 356z.8, 356z.9, 356z.10, 356z.11, 356z.12, 356z.13, 356z.14, 356z.15, 356z.22, 356z.25, 356z.26, 356z.29, 356z.30a, 356z.32, 356z.33, 356z.36, ~~and~~ 356z.41, ~~and~~ 356z.43 of the Illinois Insurance Code. The coverage shall comply with Sections 155.22a, 355b, 356z.19, and 370c of the Illinois Insurance Code. The Department of Insurance shall enforce the requirements of this Section. The requirement that health benefits be covered as provided in this Section is an exclusive power and function of the State and is a denial and limitation under Article VII, Section 6, subsection (h) of the Illinois Constitution. A home rule county to which this Section applies must comply with every provision of this Section.

Rulemaking authority to implement Public Act 95-1045, if any, is conditioned on the rules being adopted in accordance with all provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act and all rules and procedures of the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules; any purported rule not so adopted, for whatever reason, is unauthorized.

(Source: P.A. 100-24, eff. 7-18-17; 100-138, eff. 8-18-17; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1024, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1057, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1102, eff. 1-1-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19; 101-281, eff. 1-1-20; 101-393, eff. 1-1-20; 101-461, eff. 1-1-20; 101-625, eff. 1-1-21.)

Section 15. The Illinois Municipal Code is amended by changing Section 10-4-2.3 as follows:  
(65 ILCS 5/10-4-2.3)

Sec. 10-4-2.3. Required health benefits. If a municipality, including a home rule municipality, is a self-insurer for purposes of providing health insurance coverage for its employees, the coverage shall include coverage for the post-mastectomy care benefits required to be covered by a policy of accident and health insurance under Section 356t and the coverage required under Sections 356g, 356g.5, 356g.5-1, 356u, 356w, 356x, 356z.6, 356z.8, 356z.9, 356z.10, 356z.11, 356z.12, 356z.13, 356z.14, 356z.15, 356z.22, 356z.25, 356z.26, 356z.29, 356z.30a, 356z.32, 356z.33, 356z.36, ~~and~~ 356z.41, and 356z.43 of the Illinois Insurance Code. The coverage shall comply with Sections 155.22a, 355b, 356z.19, and 370c of the Illinois Insurance Code. The Department of Insurance shall enforce the requirements of this Section. The requirement that health benefits be covered as provided in this is an exclusive power and function of the State and is a denial and limitation under Article VII, Section 6, subsection (h) of the Illinois Constitution. A home rule municipality to which this Section applies must comply with every provision of this Section.

Rulemaking authority to implement Public Act 95-1045, if any, is conditioned on the rules being adopted in accordance with all provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act and all rules and procedures of the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules; any purported rule not so adopted, for whatever reason, is unauthorized.

(Source: P.A. 100-24, eff. 7-18-17; 100-138, eff. 8-18-17; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1024, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1057, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1102, eff. 1-1-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19; 101-281, eff. 1-1-20; 101-393, eff. 1-1-20; 101-461, eff. 1-1-20; 101-625, eff. 1-1-21.)

Section 20. The School Code is amended by changing Section 10-22.3f as follows:  
(105 ILCS 5/10-22.3f)

Sec. 10-22.3f. Required health benefits. Insurance protection and benefits for employees shall provide the post-mastectomy care benefits required to be covered by a policy of accident and health insurance under Section 356t and the coverage required under Sections 356g, 356g.5, 356g.5-1, 356u, 356w, 356x, 356z.6, 356z.8, 356z.9, 356z.11, 356z.12, 356z.13, 356z.14, 356z.15, 356z.22, 356z.25, 356z.26, 356z.29, 356z.30a, 356z.32, 356z.33, 356z.36, ~~and~~ 356z.41, and 356z.43 of the Illinois Insurance Code. Insurance policies shall comply with Section 356z.19 of the Illinois Insurance Code. The coverage shall comply with Sections 155.22a, 355b, and 370c of the Illinois Insurance Code. The Department of Insurance shall enforce the requirements of this Section.

Rulemaking authority to implement Public Act 95-1045, if any, is conditioned on the rules being adopted in accordance with all provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act and all rules and procedures of the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules; any purported rule not so adopted, for whatever reason, is unauthorized.

(Source: P.A. 100-24, eff. 7-18-17; 100-138, eff. 8-18-17; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1024, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1057, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1102, eff. 1-1-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19; 101-281, eff. 1-1-20; 101-393, eff. 1-1-20; 101-461, eff. 1-1-20; 101-625, eff. 1-1-21.)

Section 25. The Illinois Insurance Code is amended by adding Section 356z.43 as follows:  
(215 ILCS 5/356z.43 new)

Sec. 356z.43. Coverage for port-wine stain treatment.

(a) A group or individual policy of accident and health insurance or managed care plan amended, delivered, issued, or renewed on or after January 1, 2022 shall provide coverage for treatment to eliminate or provide maximum feasible treatment of nevus flammeus, also known as port-wine stains, including, but not limited to, port-wine stains caused by Sturge-Weber syndrome. For purposes of this Section, treatment or maximum feasible treatment shall include early intervention treatment, including topical, intrasessional, or systemic medical therapy and surgery, and laser treatments approved by the U.S. Food and Drug



Administration in children aged 18 years and younger that are intended to prevent functional impairment related to vision function, oral function, inflammation, bleeding, infection, and other medical complications associated with port-wine stains.

(b) Coverage for treatment required under this Section shall not include treatment solely for cosmetic purposes.

Section 30. The Health Maintenance Organization Act is amended by changing Section 5-3 as follows:

(215 ILCS 125/5-3) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1411.2)

Sec. 5-3. Insurance Code provisions.

(a) Health Maintenance Organizations shall be subject to the provisions of Sections 133, 134, 136, 137, 139, 140, 141.1, 141.2, 141.3, 143, 143c, 147, 148, 149, 151, 152, 153, 154, 154.5, 154.6, 154.7, 154.8, 155.04, 155.22a, 355.2, 355.3, 355b, 356g.5-1, 356m, 356v, 356w, 356x, 356y, 356z.2, 356z.4, 356z.4a, 356z.5, 356z.6, 356z.8, 356z.9, 356z.10, 356z.11, 356z.12, 356z.13, 356z.14, 356z.15, 356z.17, 356z.18, 356z.19, 356z.21, 356z.22, 356z.25, 356z.26, 356z.29, 356z.30, 356z.30a, 356z.32, 356z.33, 356z.35, 356z.36, 356z.41, 356z.43, 364, 364.01, 367.2, 367.2-5, 367i, 368a, 368b, 368c, 368d, 368e, 370c, 370c.1, 401, 401.1, 402, 403, 403A, 408, 408.2, 409, 412, 444, and 444.1, paragraph (c) of subsection (2) of Section 367, and Articles IIA, VIII 1/2, XII, XII 1/2, XIII, XIII 1/2, XXV, XXVI, and XXXIIB of the Illinois Insurance Code.

(b) For purposes of the Illinois Insurance Code, except for Sections 444 and 444.1 and Articles XIII and XIII 1/2, Health Maintenance Organizations in the following categories are deemed to be "domestic companies":

(1) a corporation authorized under the Dental Service Plan Act or the Voluntary Health Services Plans Act;

(2) a corporation organized under the laws of this State; or

(3) a corporation organized under the laws of another state, 30% or more of the enrollees of which are residents of this State, except a corporation subject to substantially the same requirements in its state of organization as is a "domestic company" under Article VIII 1/2 of the Illinois Insurance Code.

(c) In considering the merger, consolidation, or other acquisition of control of a Health Maintenance Organization pursuant to Article VIII 1/2 of the Illinois Insurance Code,

(1) the Director shall give primary consideration to the continuation of benefits to enrollees and the financial conditions of the acquired Health Maintenance Organization after the merger, consolidation, or other acquisition of control takes effect;

(2)(i) the criteria specified in subsection (1)(b) of Section 131.8 of the Illinois Insurance Code shall not apply and (ii) the Director, in making his determination with respect to the merger, consolidation, or other acquisition of control, need not take into account the effect on competition of the merger, consolidation, or other acquisition of control;

(3) the Director shall have the power to require the following information:

(A) certification by an independent actuary of the adequacy of the reserves of the Health Maintenance Organization sought to be acquired;

(B) pro forma financial statements reflecting the combined balance sheets of the acquiring company and the Health Maintenance Organization sought to be acquired as of the end of the preceding year and as of a date 90 days prior to the acquisition, as well as pro forma financial statements reflecting projected combined operation for a period of 2 years;

(C) a pro forma business plan detailing an acquiring party's plans with respect to the operation of the Health Maintenance Organization sought to be acquired for a period of not less than 3 years; and

(D) such other information as the Director shall require.

(d) The provisions of Article VIII 1/2 of the Illinois Insurance Code and this Section 5-3 shall apply to the sale by any health maintenance organization of greater than 10% of its enrollee population (including without limitation the health maintenance organization's right, title, and interest in and to its health care certificates).

(e) In considering any management contract or service agreement subject to Section 141.1 of the Illinois Insurance Code, the Director (i) shall, in addition to the criteria specified in Section 141.2 of the Illinois Insurance Code, take into account the effect of the management contract or service agreement on the

continuation of benefits to enrollees and the financial condition of the health maintenance organization to be managed or serviced, and (ii) need not take into account the effect of the management contract or service agreement on competition.

(f) Except for small employer groups as defined in the Small Employer Rating, Renewability and Portability Health Insurance Act and except for medicare supplement policies as defined in Section 363 of the Illinois Insurance Code, a Health Maintenance Organization may by contract agree with a group or other enrollment unit to effect refunds or charge additional premiums under the following terms and conditions:

(i) the amount of, and other terms and conditions with respect to, the refund or additional premium are set forth in the group or enrollment unit contract agreed in advance of the period for which a refund is to be paid or additional premium is to be charged (which period shall not be less than one year); and

(ii) the amount of the refund or additional premium shall not exceed 20% of the Health Maintenance Organization's profitable or unprofitable experience with respect to the group or other enrollment unit for the period (and, for purposes of a refund or additional premium, the profitable or unprofitable experience shall be calculated taking into account a pro rata share of the Health Maintenance Organization's administrative and marketing expenses, but shall not include any refund to be made or additional premium to be paid pursuant to this subsection (f)). The Health Maintenance Organization and the group or enrollment unit may agree that the profitable or unprofitable experience may be calculated taking into account the refund period and the immediately preceding 2 plan years.

The Health Maintenance Organization shall include a statement in the evidence of coverage issued to each enrollee describing the possibility of a refund or additional premium, and upon request of any group or enrollment unit, provide to the group or enrollment unit a description of the method used to calculate (1) the Health Maintenance Organization's profitable experience with respect to the group or enrollment unit and the resulting refund to the group or enrollment unit or (2) the Health Maintenance Organization's unprofitable experience with respect to the group or enrollment unit and the resulting additional premium to be paid by the group or enrollment unit.

In no event shall the Illinois Health Maintenance Organization Guaranty Association be liable to pay any contractual obligation of an insolvent organization to pay any refund authorized under this Section.

(g) Rulemaking authority to implement Public Act 95-1045, if any, is conditioned on the rules being adopted in accordance with all provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act and all rules and procedures of the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules; any purported rule not so adopted, for whatever reason, is unauthorized.

(Source: P.A. 100-24, eff. 7-18-17; 100-138, eff. 8-18-17; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1026, eff. 8-22-18; 100-1057, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1102, eff. 1-1-19; 101-13, eff. 6-12-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19; 101-281, eff. 1-1-20; 101-371, eff. 1-1-20; 101-393, eff. 1-1-20; 101-452, eff. 1-1-20; 101-461, eff. 1-1-20; 101-625, eff. 1-1-21.)

Section 35. The Limited Health Service Organization Act is amended by changing Section 4003 as follows:

(215 ILCS 130/4003) (from Ch. 73, par. 1504-3)

Sec. 4003. Illinois Insurance Code provisions. Limited health service organizations shall be subject to the provisions of Sections 133, 134, 136, 137, 139, 140, 141.1, 141.2, 141.3, 143, 143c, 147, 148, 149, 151, 152, 153, 154, 154.5, 154.6, 154.7, 154.8, 155.04, 155.37, 355.2, 355.3, 355b, 356v, 356z.10, 356z.21, 356z.22, 356z.25, 356z.26, 356z.29, 356z.30a, 356z.32, 356z.33, 356z.41, 356z.43, 368a, 401, 401.1, 402, 403, 403A, 408, 408.2, 409, 412, 444, and 444.1 and Articles IIA, VIII 1/2, XII, XII 1/2, XIII, XIII 1/2, XXV, and XXVI of the Illinois Insurance Code. For purposes of the Illinois Insurance Code, except for Sections 444 and 444.1 and Articles XIII and XIII 1/2, limited health service organizations in the following categories are deemed to be domestic companies:

(1) a corporation under the laws of this State; or

(2) a corporation organized under the laws of another state, 30% or more of the enrollees of which are residents of this State, except a corporation subject to substantially the same requirements in its state of organization as is a domestic company under Article VIII 1/2 of the Illinois Insurance Code.

(Source: P.A. 100-24, eff. 7-18-17; 100-138, eff. 8-18-17; 100-201, eff. 8-18-17; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1057, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1102, eff. 1-1-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19; 101-281, eff. 1-1-20; 101-393, eff. 1-1-20; 101-625, eff. 1-1-21.)

Section 40. The Voluntary Health Services Plans Act is amended by changing Section 10 as follows:  
(215 ILCS 165/10) (from Ch. 32, par. 604)

Sec. 10. Application of Insurance Code provisions. Health services plan corporations and all persons interested therein or dealing therewith shall be subject to the provisions of Articles IIA and XII 1/2 and Sections 3.1, 133, 136, 139, 140, 143, 143c, 149, 155.22a, 155.37, 354, 355.2, 355.3, 355b, 356g, 356g.5, 356g.5-1, 356r, 356t, 356u, 356v, 356w, 356x, 356y, 356z.1, 356z.2, 356z.4, 356z.4a, 356z.5, 356z.6, 356z.8, 356z.9, 356z.10, 356z.11, 356z.12, 356z.13, 356z.14, 356z.15, 356z.18, 356z.19, 356z.21, 356z.22, 356z.25, 356z.26, 356z.29, 356z.30, 356z.30a, 356z.32, 356z.33, 356z.41, 356z.43, 364.01, 367.2, 368a, 401, 401.1, 402, 403, 403A, 408, 408.2, and 412, and paragraphs (7) and (15) of Section 367 of the Illinois Insurance Code.

Rulemaking authority to implement Public Act 95-1045, if any, is conditioned on the rules being adopted in accordance with all provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act and all rules and procedures of the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules; any purported rule not so adopted, for whatever reason, is unauthorized.

(Source: P.A. 100-24, eff. 7-18-17; 100-138, eff. 8-18-17; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1026, eff. 8-22-18; 100-1057, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1102, eff. 1-1-19; 101-13, eff. 6-12-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19; 101-281, eff. 1-1-20; 101-393, eff. 1-1-20; 101-625, eff. 1-1-21.)

Section 45. The Illinois Public Aid Code is amended by changing Section 5-16.8 as follows:  
(305 ILCS 5/5-16.8)

Sec. 5-16.8. Required health benefits. The medical assistance program shall (i) provide the post-mastectomy care benefits required to be covered by a policy of accident and health insurance under Section 356t and the coverage required under Sections 356g.5, 356u, 356w, 356x, 356z.6, 356z.26, 356z.29, 356z.32, 356z.33, 356z.34, ~~and~~ 356z.35, and 356z.43 of the Illinois Insurance Code and (ii) be subject to the provisions of Sections 356z.19, 364.01, 370c, and 370c.1 of the Illinois Insurance Code.

The Department, by rule, shall adopt a model similar to the requirements of Section 356z.39 of the Illinois Insurance Code.

On and after July 1, 2012, the Department shall reduce any rate of reimbursement for services or other payments or alter any methodologies authorized by this Code to reduce any rate of reimbursement for services or other payments in accordance with Section 5-5e.

To ensure full access to the benefits set forth in this Section, on and after January 1, 2016, the Department shall ensure that provider and hospital reimbursement for post-mastectomy care benefits required under this Section are no lower than the Medicare reimbursement rate.

(Source: P.A. 100-138, eff. 8-18-17; 100-863, eff. 8-14-18; 100-1057, eff. 1-1-19; 100-1102, eff. 1-1-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19; 101-218, eff. 1-1-20; 101-281, eff. 1-1-20; 101-371, eff. 1-1-20; 101-574, eff. 1-1-20; 101-649, eff. 7-7-20.)"

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 2 was ordered engrossed, and the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

## READING BILLS FROM THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES A SECOND TIME

On motion of Senator Rezin, **House Bill No. 227** was taken up, read by title a second time.

Committee Amendment No. 1 was held in the Committee on Revenue.

There being no further amendments, the bill was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Morrison, **House Bill No. 832** having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on State Government, adopted and ordered printed:

### AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL 832

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 832 on page 3, line 1, by replacing "Sections 605-460 and 605-1007" with "Section 605-460"; and

by deleting everything from line 12 on page 4 through line 21 on page 5.

Floor Amendment No. 2 was held in the Committee on State Government.  
There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

#### **ANNOUNCEMENT**

The Chair announced that the deadline for filing Floor amendments is this Friday, May 21, 2021, at 12:00 o'clock noon.

At the hour of 1:00 o'clock p.m., the Chair announced that the Senate stand at recess subject to the call of the Chair.

#### **AFTER RECESS**

At the hour of 8:12 o'clock p.m., the Senate resumed consideration of business.  
Senator Lightford, presiding.

#### **LEGISLATIVE MEASURES FILED**

The following Floor amendments to the House Bills listed below have been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 375  
Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 417  
Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 576  
Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 3161

The following Committee amendments to the House Bills listed below have been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 645  
Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 1739  
Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 1975

#### **PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS**

##### **SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 309**

Offered by Senator Villanueva and all Senators:  
Mourns the death of Marcos Muñoz.

By unanimous consent, the foregoing resolution was referred to the Resolutions Consent Calendar.

Senator Bush offered the following Senate Joint Resolution, which was referred to the Committee on Assignments:

##### **SENATE JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 32**

WHEREAS, The Illinois State Toll Highway Authority expended time and resources on the Illinois Route 53/120 project, later known as the Tri-County Access project, and estimated in 2019 that it would take substantial funds to complete studies for that project; and

[May 19, 2021]

WHEREAS, The authority for that project derived from Senate Joint Resolution 14 of the 88th General Assembly, adopted over a quarter-century ago on July 2, 1993, which authorized the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority to expand certain roads; and

WHEREAS, In 2012, the 97th General Assembly declined to pass Senate Joint Resolution 77, which would have explicitly renewed authorization for the extension of I-53; and

WHEREAS, In July of 2019, the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority requested that the Federal Highway Administration rescind its Letter of Intent for the Tri-County Environmental Impact Statement study, which included roads referenced in Senate Joint Resolution 14 of the 88th General Assembly; and

WHEREAS, In August of 2019, the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority stated that the project lacked sufficient local support it previously enjoyed, including the support of the Lake County Board; and

WHEREAS, The Lake County Board has included the rescission of Route 53 Extension Authority as part of its legislative agenda for the 2021 session of the General Assembly; and

WHEREAS, In August of 2019, the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority declared that it was not in the Tollway's interest to lead further development of the project and terminated the ongoing study and contracts related to the project; and

WHEREAS, In October of 2019, the Circuit Court of the 18th Judicial Circuit found that the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority had terminated the Illinois Route 53/120 project; therefore, be it

RESOLVED, BY THE SENATE OF THE ONE HUNDRED SECOND GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES CONCURRING HEREIN, that the section authorizing the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority to extend Illinois Route 53 from Lake-Cook Road to Illinois Route 120 then east to Interstate 94 and the section authorizing the Illinois State Toll Highway Authority to extend the North-South Tollway at Illinois Route 120 to the Illinois-Wisconsin border near Richmond, Illinois is rescinded.

#### REPORT FROM STANDING COMMITTEE

Senator Glowiak Hilton, Vice-Chair of the Committee on Licensed Activities, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 14, 562, 3139, 3497, 3596 and 3798**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Glowiak Hilton, Vice-Chair of the Committee on Licensed Activities, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 3355 and 3401**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bills, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Landek, Chair of the Committee on State Government, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 202, 247, 3372 and 3870**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Landek, Chair of the Committee on State Government, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendments, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 832  
Senate Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 1726

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendments are eligible for consideration on second reading.

Senator Castro, Chair of the Committee on Executive, to which was referred **Senate Bill No. 1770**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass.

Under the rules, the bill was ordered to a second reading.

Senator Castro, Chair of the Committee on Executive, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendments, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 815

Senate Amendment No. 4 to Senate Bill 818

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendments are eligible for consideration on second reading.

Senator Castro, Chair of the Committee on Executive, to which was referred **Senate Joint Resolution Constitutional Amendment No. 11**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the resolution be adopted.

Under the rules, **Senate Joint Resolution Constitutional Amendment No. 11** was placed on the Secretary's Desk on the order of first reading.

Senator Castro, Chair of the Committee on Executive, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 1960, 2408, 2413, 2616, 3202, 3293, 3438, 3496, 3712, 3716, 3811, 3922, 3940 and 3956**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Castro, Chair of the Committee on Executive, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 1739, 2499, 2521, 3437 and 3739**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bills, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Harris, Chair of the Committee on Insurance, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 33 and 3709**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Harris, Chair of the Committee on Insurance, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 135, 2109, 2589, 2595 and 3598**, reported the same back with amendments having been adopted thereto, with the recommendation that the bills, as amended, do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Hunter, Chair of the Committee on Revenue, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 1769, 2061, 2411, 3289 and 3313**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

Senator Hunter, Chair of the Committee on Revenue, to which was referred the following Senate floor amendment, reported that the Committee recommends do adopt:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 2365

Under the rules, the foregoing floor amendment is eligible for consideration on second reading.

## INTRODUCTION OF BILL

**SENATE BILL NO. 2902.** Introduced by Senator Crowe, a bill for AN ACT concerning State government.

The bill was taken up, read by title a first time, ordered printed and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

## MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

A message from the House by

Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 116

A bill for AN ACT concerning business.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 116

Passed the House, as amended, May 19, 2021.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

### AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 116

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 116 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Business Corporation Act of 1983 is amended by changing Sections 7.05, 7.15, 7.30, 11.39, 15.10, 15.35, and 15.97 and by adding Section 14.13 as follows:

(805 ILCS 5/7.05) (from Ch. 32, par. 7.05)

Sec. 7.05. Meetings of shareholders. Meetings of shareholders may be held either within or without this State, as may be provided in the by-laws or in a resolution of the board of directors pursuant to authority granted in the by-laws. In the absence of any such provision, all meetings shall be held at the principal registered office of the corporation in this State.

An annual meeting of the shareholders shall be held at such time as may be provided in the by-laws or in a resolution of the board of directors pursuant to authority granted in the by-laws. Failure to hold the annual meeting at the designated time shall not work a forfeiture or dissolution of the corporation nor affect the validity of corporate action. If an annual meeting has not been held within the earlier of six months after the end of the corporation's fiscal year or fifteen months after its last annual meeting and if, after a request in writing directed to the president of the corporation, a notice of meeting is not given within 60 days of such request, then any shareholder entitled to vote at an annual meeting may apply to the circuit court of the county in which the registered office or principal place of business of the corporation is located for an order directing that the meeting be held and fixing the time and place of the meeting. The court may issue such additional orders as may be necessary or appropriate for the holding of the meeting.

Unless specifically prohibited by the articles of incorporation or by-laws, a corporation may allow shareholders to participate in and act at any meeting of the shareholders by means of remote communication, including, but not limited to, through the use of a conference telephone or interactive technology, including but not limited to electronic transmission, or Internet usage, or remote communication, by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with each other. Shareholders participating in a shareholders' meeting by means of remote communication shall be deemed present and may vote at such a meeting if the corporation has implemented reasonable measures:

(1) to verify that each person participating remotely as a shareholder is a shareholder; and

(2) to provide to such shareholders a reasonable opportunity to participate in the meeting and to vote on matters submitted to the shareholders, including the opportunity to communicate and to read or hear the proceedings of the meeting.

A shareholder entitled to vote at a meeting of the shareholders shall be permitted to attend the meeting where space permits (in the case of a meeting at a place), and subject to the corporation's by-laws and rules governing the conduct of the meeting and the power of the chairman to regulate the orderly conduct of the

[May 19, 2021]

meeting. Participation in such meeting shall constitute attendance and presence in person at the meeting of the person or persons so participating.

Special meetings of the shareholders may be called by the president, by the board of directors, by the holders of not less than one-fifth of all the outstanding shares entitled to vote on the matter for which the meeting is called or by such other officers or persons as may be provided in the articles of incorporation or the by-laws. Only business within the purpose or purposes described in the meeting notice required by Section 7.15 may be conducted at a special meeting of shareholders.

If the special meeting is called by the shareholders, one or more written demands by the holders of the requisite number of votes to be cast on an issue proposed to be considered at the proposed special meeting must be signed, dated, and delivered to the corporation describing the purpose or purposes for which the proposed special meeting is to be held. No written demand by a shareholder for a special meeting shall be effective unless, within 60 days of the earliest date on which such a demand delivered to the corporation as required by this Section was signed, written demands signed by shareholders holding at least the percentage of votes specified in or fixed in accordance with the preceding paragraph of this Section have been delivered to the corporation. Unless otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation, a written demand by a shareholder for a special meeting may be revoked by a writing to that effect received by the corporation before the receipt by the corporation of demands from shareholders sufficient in number to require the holding of a special meeting. The record date for determining shareholders entitled to demand a special meeting shall be the first date on which a signed shareholder demand is delivered to the corporation.

Unless the by-laws require the meeting of shareholders to be held at a place, the board of directors may determine that any meeting of the shareholders shall not be held at any place and shall instead be held solely by means of remote communication, but only if the corporation implements the measures specified in items (1) and (2) of this Section.

(Source: P.A. 94-655, eff. 1-1-06.)

(805 ILCS 5/7.15) (from Ch. 32, par. 7.15)

Sec. 7.15. Notice of shareholders' meetings. Written notice stating the place, ~~if any,~~ day, ~~and~~ hour of the meeting, and the means of remote communication, if any, by which shareholders may be deemed to be present in person and vote at such meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered not less than 10 nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting, or in the case of a merger, consolidation, share exchange, dissolution or sale, lease or exchange of assets not less than 20 nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the president, or the secretary, or the officer or persons calling the meeting, to each shareholder of record entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the shareholder at his or her address as it appears on the records of the corporation, with postage thereon prepaid.

(Source: P.A. 83-1025.)

(805 ILCS 5/7.30) (from Ch. 32, par. 7.30)

Sec. 7.30. Voting lists. The officer or agent having charge of the transfer book for shares of a corporation shall make, within 20 days after the record date for a meeting of shareholders or 10 days before such meeting, whichever is earlier, a complete list of the shareholders entitled to vote at such meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, with the address of and the number of shares held by each, which list, for a period of 10 days prior to such meeting, shall be kept on file ~~at the registered office of the corporation~~ and shall be subject to inspection by any shareholder, and to copying at the shareholder's expense, at the registered office of the corporation at any time during usual business hours or on a reasonably accessible electronic network, at the corporation's election. If the corporation determines to make the list available on an electronic network, the corporation may take reasonable steps to ensure that such information is available only to shareholders of the corporation. Such list shall also be produced and kept open at the time and place of the meeting, or on a reasonably accessible electronic network if the meeting will be held solely by means of remote communication, and shall be subject to the inspection of any shareholder during the whole time of the meeting. The original share ledger or transfer book, or a duplicate thereof kept in this State, shall be prima facie evidence as to who are the shareholders entitled to examine such list or share ledger or transfer book or to vote at any meeting of shareholders.

Failure to comply with the requirements of this Section shall not affect the validity of any action taken at such meeting.

An officer or agent having charge of the transfer books who shall fail to prepare the list of shareholders, or keep the same on file for a period of 10 days, or produce and keep the same open for



inspection at the meeting, as provided in this Section, shall be liable to any shareholder suffering damage on account of such failure, to the extent of such damage.

(Source: P.A. 83-1025.)

(805 ILCS 5/11.39)

Sec. 11.39. Merger of domestic corporation and limited liability ~~entities~~ ~~company~~.

(a) Any one or more domestic corporations may merge with or into one or more limited liability ~~entities~~ ~~companies~~ of this State, any other state or states of the United States, or the District of Columbia, if the laws of the other state or states or the District of Columbia permit the merger. The domestic corporation or corporations and the limited liability ~~entity~~ or ~~entities~~ ~~company~~ or ~~companies~~ may merge with or into a corporation, which may be any one of these corporations, or they may merge with or into a limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~, which may be any one of these limited liability ~~entities~~ ~~companies~~, which shall be a domestic corporation or limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~ of this State, any other state of the United States, or the District of Columbia, which permits the merger pursuant to a plan of merger complying with and approved in accordance with this Section.

(b) The plan of merger must set forth the following:

(1) The names of the domestic corporation or corporations and limited liability ~~entity~~ or ~~entities~~ ~~company~~ or ~~companies~~ proposing to merge and the name of the domestic corporation or limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~ into which they propose to merge, which is designated as the surviving entity.

(2) The terms and conditions of the proposed merger and the mode of carrying the same into effect.

(3) The manner and basis of converting the shares of each domestic corporation and the interests of each limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~ into shares, interests, obligations, other securities of the surviving entity or into cash or other property or any combination of the foregoing.

(4) In the case of a merger in which a domestic corporation is the surviving entity, a statement of any changes in the articles of incorporation of the surviving corporation to be effected by the merger.

(5) Any other provisions with respect to the proposed merger that are deemed necessary or desirable, including provisions, if any, under which the proposed merger may be abandoned prior to the filing of the articles of merger by the Secretary of State of this State.

(c) The plan required by subsection (b) of this Section shall be adopted and approved by the constituent corporation or corporations in the same manner as is provided in Sections 11.05, 11.15, and 11.20 of this Act and, in the case of a limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~, in accordance with the terms of its operating or partnership agreement, if any, and in accordance with the laws under which it was formed.

(d) Upon this approval, articles of merger shall be executed by each constituent corporation and limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~ and filed with the Secretary of State. The merger shall become effective for all purposes of the laws of this State when and as provided in Section 11.40 of this Act with respect to the merger of corporations of this State.

(e) If the surviving entity is to be governed by the laws of the District of Columbia or any state other than this State, it shall file with the Secretary of State of this State an agreement that it may be served with process in this State in any proceeding for enforcement of any obligation of any constituent corporation or limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~ of this State, as well as for enforcement of any obligation of the surviving corporation or limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~ arising from the merger, including any suit or other proceeding to enforce the shareholders right to dissent as provided in Section 11.70 of this Act, and shall irrevocably appoint the Secretary of State of this State as its agent to accept service of process in any such suit or other proceedings.

(f) Section 11.50 of this Act shall, insofar as it is applicable, apply to mergers between domestic corporations and limited liability ~~entities~~ ~~companies~~.

(g) In any merger under this Section, the surviving entity shall not engage in any business or exercise any power that a domestic corporation or domestic limited liability ~~entity~~ ~~company~~ may not otherwise engage in or exercise in this State. Furthermore, the surviving entity shall be governed by the ownership and control restrictions in Illinois law applicable to that type of entity.

(Source: P.A. 96-1121, eff. 1-1-11.)

(805 ILCS 5/14.13 new)

Sec. 14.13. Report of interim changes of domestic or foreign corporations. Any corporation, domestic or foreign, may report interim changes in the name, address, or both of its officers and directors, its principal

office, or its minority-owned business status by filing a report under this Section containing the following information:

(1) The name of the corporation.

(2) The address, including street and number, or rural route number, of its registered office in this State, and the name of its registered agent at that address.

(3) The address, including street and number, or rural route number, of its principal office.

(4) The names and respective addresses, including street and number, or rural route number, of its directors and officers.

A statement, including the basis therefor, of status as a minority-owned business or as a women-owned business as those terms are defined in the Business Enterprise for Minorities, Women, and Persons with Disabilities Act.

The interim report of changes shall be made on forms prescribed and furnished by the Secretary of State and shall be executed by the corporation by its president, a vice-president, secretary, assistant secretary, treasurer, or other officer duly authorized by the board of directors of the corporation to execute those reports, and verified by him or her, or, if the corporation is in the hands of a receiver or trustee, it shall be executed on behalf of the corporation and verified by the receiver or trustee.

(805 ILCS 5/15.10) (from Ch. 32, par. 15.10)

Sec. 15.10. Fees for filing documents. The Secretary of State shall charge and collect for:

(a) Filing articles of incorporation, \$150.

(b) Filing articles of amendment, \$50, unless the amendment is a restatement of the articles of incorporation, in which case the fee shall be \$150.

(c) Filing articles of merger or consolidation, \$100, but if the merger or consolidation involves more than 2 corporations, \$50 for each additional corporation.

(d) Filing articles of share exchange, \$100.

(e) Filing articles of dissolution, \$5.

(f) Filing application to reserve a corporate name, \$25.

(g) Filing a notice of transfer of a reserved corporate name, \$25.

(h) Filing statement of change of address of registered office or change of registered agent, or both, \$25.

(i) Filing statement of the establishment of a series of shares, \$25.

(j) Filing an application of a foreign corporation for authority to transact business in this State, \$150.

(k) Filing an application of a foreign corporation for amended authority to transact business in this State, \$25.

(l) Filing a copy of amendment to the articles of incorporation of a foreign corporation holding authority to transact business in this State, \$50, unless the amendment is a restatement of the articles of incorporation, in which case the fee shall be \$150.

(m) Filing a copy of articles of merger of a foreign corporation holding a certificate of authority to transact business in this State, \$100, but if the merger involves more than 2 corporations, \$50 for each additional corporation.

(n) Filing an application for withdrawal and final report or a copy of articles of dissolution of a foreign corporation, \$25.

(o) Filing an annual report, interim annual report, or final transition annual report of a domestic or foreign corporation, \$75.

(p) Filing an application for reinstatement of a domestic or a foreign corporation, \$200.

(q) Filing an application for use of an assumed corporate name, \$150 for each year or part thereof ending in 0 or 5, \$120 for each year or part thereof ending in 1 or 6, \$90 for each year or part thereof ending in 2 or 7, \$60 for each year or part thereof ending in 3 or 8, \$30 for each year or part thereof ending in 4 or 9, between the date of filing the application and the date of the renewal of the assumed corporate name; and a renewal fee for each assumed corporate name, \$150.

(r) To change an assumed corporate name for the period remaining until the renewal date of the original assumed name, \$25.

(s) Filing an application for cancellation of an assumed corporate name, \$5.

(t) Filing an application to register the corporate name of a foreign corporation, \$50; and an annual renewal fee for the registered name, \$50.

(u) Filing an application for cancellation of a registered name of a foreign corporation, \$25.

(v) Filing a statement of correction, \$50.

- (w) Filing a petition for refund or adjustment, \$5.
- (x) Filing a statement of election of an extended filing month, \$25.
- (y) Filing a report of interim changes, \$50.
- (z) Filing any other statement or report, \$5.

(Source: P.A. 95-331, eff. 8-21-07.)

(805 ILCS 5/15.35) (from Ch. 32, par. 15.35)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2025)

Sec. 15.35. Franchise taxes payable by domestic corporations. For the privilege of exercising its franchises in this State, each domestic corporation shall pay to the Secretary of State the following franchise taxes, computed on the basis, at the rates and for the periods prescribed in this Act:

(a) An initial franchise tax at the time of filing its first report of issuance of shares.

(b) An additional franchise tax at the time of filing (1) a report of the issuance of additional shares, or (2) a report of an increase in paid-in capital without the issuance of shares, or (3) an amendment to the articles of incorporation or a report of cumulative changes in paid-in capital, whenever any amendment or such report discloses an increase in its paid-in capital over the amount thereof last reported in any document, other than an annual report, interim annual report or final transition annual report required by this Act to be filed in the office of the Secretary of State.

(c) An additional franchise tax at the time of filing a report of paid-in capital following a statutory merger or consolidation, which discloses that the paid-in capital of the surviving or new corporation immediately after the merger or consolidation is greater than the sum of the paid-in capital of all of the merged or consolidated corporations as last reported by them in any documents, other than annual reports, required by this Act to be filed in the office of the Secretary of State; and in addition, the surviving or new corporation shall be liable for a further additional franchise tax on the paid-in capital of each of the merged or consolidated corporations as last reported by them in any document, other than an annual report, required by this Act to be filed with the Secretary of State from their taxable year end to the next succeeding anniversary month or, in the case of a corporation which has established an extended filing month, the extended filing month of the surviving or new corporation; however if the taxable year ends within the 2-month ~~2-month~~ period immediately preceding the anniversary month or, in the case of a corporation which has established an extended filing month, the extended filing month of the surviving or new corporation the tax will be computed to the anniversary month or, in the case of a corporation which has established an extended filing month, the extended filing month of the surviving or new corporation in the next succeeding calendar year.

(d) An annual franchise tax payable each year with the annual report which the corporation is required by this Act to file.

~~(e)~~ On or after January 1, 2020 and prior to January 1, 2021, the first \$30 in liability is exempt from the tax imposed under this Section. On or after January 1, 2021 and prior to January 1, 2022, the first \$1,000 in liability is exempt from the tax imposed under this Section. On or after January 1, 2022 and prior to January 1, 2023, the first \$10,000 in liability is exempt from the tax imposed under this Section. On or after January 1, 2023 and prior to January 1, 2024, the first \$100,000 in liability is exempt from the tax imposed under this Section. The provisions of this Section shall not require the payment of any franchise tax that would otherwise have been due and payable on or after January 1, 2024. There shall be no refunds or proration of franchise tax for any taxes due and payable on or after January 1, 2024 on the basis that a portion of the corporation's taxable year extends beyond January 1, 2024. Public Act 101-9 ~~This amendatory Act of the 101st General Assembly~~ shall not affect any right accrued or established, or any liability or penalty incurred prior to January 1, 2024.

~~(f)~~ This Section is repealed on December 31, 2024 ~~2025~~.

(Source: P.A. 101-9, eff. 6-5-19; revised 7-18-19.)

(805 ILCS 5/15.97) (from Ch. 32, par. 15.97)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2022)

Sec. 15.97. Corporate Franchise Tax Refund Fund.

(a) Beginning July 1, 1993, a percentage of the amounts collected under Sections 15.35, 15.45, 15.65, and 15.75 of this Act shall be deposited into the Corporate Franchise Tax Refund Fund, a special Fund hereby created in the State treasury. From July 1, 1993, until December 31, 1994, there shall be deposited into the Fund 3% of the amounts received under those Sections. Beginning January 1, 1995, and for each

fiscal year beginning thereafter, 2% of the amounts collected under those Sections during the preceding fiscal year shall be deposited into the Fund.

(b) Beginning July 1, 1993, moneys in the Fund shall be expended exclusively for the purpose of paying refunds payable because of overpayment of franchise taxes, penalties, or interest under Sections 13.70, 15.35, 15.45, 15.65, 15.75, and 16.05 of this Act and making transfers authorized under this Section. Refunds in accordance with the provisions of subsections (f) and (g) of Section 1.15 and Section 1.17 of this Act may be made from the Fund only to the extent that amounts collected under Sections 15.35, 15.45, 15.65, and 15.75 of this Act have been deposited in the Fund and remain available. On or before August 31 of each year, the balance in the Fund in excess of \$100,000 shall be transferred to the General Revenue Fund. Notwithstanding the provisions of this subsection, for the period commencing on or after July 1, 2022, amounts in the fund shall not be transferred to the General Revenue Fund and shall be used to pay refunds in accordance with the provisions of this Act. Within a reasonable time after December 31, 2022, the Secretary of State shall direct and the Comptroller shall order transferred to the General Revenue Fund all amounts remaining in the fund.

(c) This Act shall constitute an irrevocable and continuing appropriation from the Corporate Franchise Tax Refund Fund for the purpose of paying refunds upon the order of the Secretary of State in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

(d) This Section is repealed on December 31, 2024 ~~2022~~.

(Source: P.A. 101-9, eff. 6-5-19.)

Section 10. The Benefit Corporation Act is amended by changing Sections 1.10 and 2.01 as follows:  
(805 ILCS 40/1.10)

Sec. 1.10. Definitions. As used in this Act, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and phrases defined in this Section shall have the meanings set forth herein.

"Benefit corporation" means a corporation organized under the Business Corporation Act of 1983 or a foreign benefit corporation organized under the laws of another state, authorized to transact business in this State, and:

- (1) which has elected to become subject to this Act; and
- (2) whose status as a benefit corporation has not been terminated under Section 2.10.

"Benefit director" means either:

- (1) the director designated as the benefit director of a benefit corporation under Section 4.05; or
- (2) a person with one or more of the powers, duties, or rights of a benefit director to the extent provided in the bylaws pursuant to Section 4.05.

"Benefit enforcement proceeding" means a claim or action for:

- (1) the failure of a benefit corporation to pursue or create general public benefit or a specific public benefit set forth in its articles of incorporation; or
- (2) a violation of an obligation, duty, or standard of conduct under this Act.

"Benefit officer" means the individual designated as the benefit officer of a benefit corporation under Section 4.15.

"General public benefit" means a material positive impact on society and the environment, taken as a whole, assessed against a third-party standard, from the business and operations of a benefit corporation.

"Independent" means having no material relationship with a benefit corporation or a subsidiary of the benefit corporation. A person serving as benefit director or benefit officer may be considered independent. For the purposes of this definition, a percentage of ownership in an entity shall be calculated as if all outstanding rights to acquire equity interests in the entity have been exercised. A material relationship between a person and a benefit corporation or any of its subsidiaries will be conclusively presumed to exist if:

- (1) the person is, or has been within the last 3 years, an employee other than a benefit officer of the benefit corporation or a subsidiary of the benefit corporation;
- (2) an immediate family member of the person is, or has been within the last 3 years, an executive officer other than a benefit officer of the benefit corporation or its subsidiaries; or
- (3) there is beneficial or record ownership of 5% or more of the outstanding shares of the benefit corporation by:
  - (A) the person; or
  - (B) an entity:
    - (i) of which the person is a director, an officer, or a manager; or

(ii) in which the person owns beneficially or of record 5% or more of the outstanding equity interests.

"Minimum status vote" means that:

(1) in the case of a corporation, in addition to any other approval or vote required by the Business Corporation Act of 1983, the bylaws, or the articles of incorporation:

(A) the shareholders of every class or series shall be entitled to vote on the corporate action regardless of a limitation stated in the articles of incorporation or bylaws on the voting rights of any class or series; and

(B) the corporate action shall be approved by vote of the outstanding shares of each class or series entitled to vote by at least two-thirds of the votes that all shareholders of the class or series are entitled to cast on the action; and

(2) in the case of an entity organized under the laws of this State that is not a corporation, in addition to any other approval, vote, or consent required by the statutory law, if any, that principally governs the internal affairs of the entity or any provision of the publicly filed record or document required to form the entity, if any, or of any agreement binding on some or all of the holders of equity interests in the entity:

(A) the holders of every class or series of equity interest in the entity that are entitled to receive a distribution of any kind from the entity shall be entitled to vote on or consent to the action regardless of any otherwise applicable limitation on the voting or consent rights of any class or series; and

(B) the action must be approved by a vote or consent of at least two-thirds of such holders.

"Specific public benefit" means:

(1) providing low-income or underserved individuals or communities with beneficial products or services;

(2) promoting economic opportunity for individuals or communities beyond the creation of jobs in the ordinary course of business;

(3) preserving the environment;

(4) improving human health;

(5) promoting the arts, sciences or advancement of knowledge;

(6) increasing the flow of capital to entities with a public benefit purpose; or

(7) the accomplishment of any other particular benefit for society or the environment.

"Subsidiary" of a person means an entity in which the person owns beneficially or of record 50% or more of the outstanding equity interests. For the purposes of this subsection, a percentage of ownership in an entity shall be calculated as if all outstanding rights to acquire equity interests in the entity have been exercised.

"Third-party standard" means a standard for defining, reporting, and assessing overall corporate, social, and environmental performance that:

(1) is a comprehensive assessment of the impact of the business and the business' operations upon the considerations listed in subdivisions (a)(1)(B) through (a)(1)(E) of Section 4.01;

(2) is developed by an entity that has no material financial relationship with the benefit corporation or any of its subsidiaries;

(3) is developed by an entity that is not materially financed by any of the following organizations and not more than one-third of the members of the governing body of the entity are representatives of:

(A) associations of businesses operating in a specific industry, the performance of whose members is measured by the standard;

(B) businesses from a specific industry or an association of businesses in that industry; or

(C) businesses whose performance is assessed against the standard; and

(4) is developed by an entity that:

(A) accesses necessary and appropriate expertise to assess overall corporate social and environmental performance; and

(B) uses a balanced multi-stakeholder approach, including a public comment period of at least 30 days to develop the standard; and

(5) makes the following information regarding the standard publicly available:

(A) the factors considered when measuring the overall social and environmental performance of a business and the relative weight, if any, given to each of those factors;

(B) the identity of the directors, officers, any material owners, and the governing body of the entity that developed, and controls revisions to, the standard, and the process by which revisions to the standard and changes to the membership of the governing body are made; and

(C) an accounting of the sources of financial support for the entity, with sufficient detail to disclose any relationships that could reasonably be considered to present a potential conflict of interest.

(Source: P.A. 97-885, eff. 1-1-13.)

(805 ILCS 40/2.01)

Sec. 2.01. Formation of benefit corporations. A benefit corporation must be formed in accordance with Article 2 of the Business Corporation Act of 1983 or be a foreign benefit corporation organized under the laws of another state and authorized to transact business in this State. In addition to the formation requirements of that Act, the articles of incorporation of a benefit corporation must state that it is a benefit corporation in accordance with the provisions of this Article.

(Source: P.A. 97-885, eff. 1-1-13.)

Section 13. The Limited Liability Company Act is amended by adding Sections 35-22 and 45-70 as follows:

(805 ILCS 180/35-22 new)

Sec. 35-22. Revocation of termination.

(a) A limited liability company may revoke its termination within 90 days after the effective date of termination if the limited liability company has not begun to distribute its assets or has not commenced a proceeding for court supervision of its winding up under Section 35-4.

(b) The limited liability company members or managers may revoke the termination if a majority of members or managers, respectively, approve the revocation.

(c) Within 90 days after the termination has been revoked by the limited liability company, articles of revocation of termination shall be executed and filed in duplicate in accordance with Section 5-45 and shall set forth:

(1) The name of the limited liability company.

(2) The effective date of the termination that was revoked.

(3) A statement that the limited liability company has not begun to distribute its assets nor has it commenced a proceeding for court supervision of its winding up.

(4) The date the revocation of termination was authorized.

(5) A statement that the limited liability company members or managers revoked the termination.

(d) When the provisions of this Section have been complied with, the Secretary of State shall endorse the word "Filed" on the duplicate copy of the articles of revocation of termination. Failure of the limited liability company to file the articles of revocation of termination within the time period required in subsection (c) shall not be grounds for the Secretary of State to reject the filing, but the limited liability company filing beyond the time period shall pay a penalty as prescribed by this Act.

(e) The revocation of termination is effective on the date of filing thereof by the Secretary of State and shall relate back and take effect as of the date of termination and the limited liability company may resume carrying on business as if termination had never occurred.

(805 ILCS 180/45-70 new)

Sec. 45-70. Reinstatement following termination.

(a) A voluntarily terminated limited liability company may be reinstated by the Secretary of State following the date of issuance of the notice of termination upon:

(1) The filing of an application for reinstatement.

(2) The filing with the Secretary of State by the limited liability company of all reports then due and theretofore becoming due.

(3) The payment to the Secretary of State of all fees and penalties then due and theretofore becoming due.

(b) The application for reinstatement shall be executed and filed in duplicate in accordance with Section 5-45 of this Act and shall set forth all of the following:

(1) The name of the limited liability company at the time of the issuance of the notice of termination.

(2) If the name is not available for use as determined by the Secretary of State at the time of filing the application for reinstatement, the name of the limited liability company as changed, provided that any change of name is properly effected under Section 1-10 and Section 5-25 of this Act.

(3) The date of issuance of the notice of termination.

(4) The address, including street and number or rural route number, of the registered office of the limited liability company upon reinstatement thereof and the name of its registered agent at that address upon the reinstatement of the limited liability company, provided that any change from either the registered office or the registered agent at the time of termination is properly reported under Section 1-35 of this Act.

(c) When a terminated limited liability company has complied with the provisions of the Section, the Secretary of State shall file the application for reinstatement.

(d) Upon the filing of the application for reinstatement, the existence of the limited liability company shall be deemed to have continued without interruption from the date of the issuance of the notice of termination, and the limited liability company shall stand revived with the powers, duties, and obligations as if it had not been terminated. All acts and proceedings of its members, managers, officers, employees, and agents, acting or purporting to act in that capacity, and which would have been legal and valid but for the termination, shall stand ratified and confirmed.

(e) Without limiting the generality of subsection (d), upon the filing of the application for reinstatement, no member, manager, or officer shall be personally liable for the debts and liabilities of the limited liability company incurred during the period of termination by reason of the fact that the limited liability company was terminated at the time the debts or liabilities were incurred.

Section 15. The Uniform Limited Partnership Act (2001) is amended by changing Section 1308 as follows:

(805 ILCS 215/1308)

Sec. 1308. Department of Business Services Special Operations Fund.

(a) A special fund in the State Treasury is created and shall be known as the Department of Business Services Special Operations Fund. Moneys deposited into the Fund shall, subject to appropriation, be used by the Department of Business Services of the Office of the Secretary of State, hereinafter "Department", to create and maintain the capability to perform expedited services in response to special requests made by the public for same day or 24 hour service. Moneys deposited into the Fund shall be used for, but not limited to, expenditures for personal services, retirement, Social Security, contractual services, equipment, electronic data processing, and telecommunications.

(b) The balance in the Fund at the end of any fiscal year shall not exceed \$600,000 and any amount in excess thereof shall be transferred to the General Revenue Fund.

(c) All fees payable to the Secretary of State under this Section shall be deposited into the Fund. No other fees or charges collected under this Act shall be deposited into the Fund.

(d) "Expedited services" means services rendered within the same day, or within 24 hours from the time the request therefor is submitted by the filer, law firm, service company, or messenger physically in person or, at the Secretary of State's discretion, by electronic means, to the Department's Springfield Office or Chicago Office and includes requests for certified copies and photocopies, and ~~certificates of existence or abstracts of computer record made to the Department's Springfield Office in person or by telephone, or requests for certificates of existence or abstracts of computer record made in person or by telephone to the Department's Chicago Office.~~ A request submitted by electronic means may not be considered a request for expedited services solely because of its submission by electronic means, unless expedited service is requested by the filer.

(e) Fees for expedited services shall be as follows:

Merger, \$200;

Certificate of limited partnership, \$100;

Certificate of amendment, \$100;

Reinstatement, \$100;

Application for admission to transact business, \$100;

Abstract Certificate of existence or abstract of computer record, \$20;

All other filings, copies of documents, ~~annual renewal reports~~, and copies of documents of canceled limited partnerships, \$50.

(f) Filing of annual renewal reports and requests for certificates of existence shall be made in real time only, without expedited services available.

(Source: P.A. 100-186, eff. 7-1-18; 100-561, eff. 7-1-18; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19)."

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 116**, with House Amendment No. 1, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

A message from the House by

Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 2107

A bill for AN ACT concerning public employee benefits.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 2107

Passed the House, as amended, May 19, 2021.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

**AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 2107**

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2107 on page 22, immediately below line 2, by inserting the following:

"Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 2107**, with House Amendment No. 1, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

A message from the House by

Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of bills of the following titles, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 109

A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.

SENATE BILL NO. 139

A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.

SENATE BILL NO. 337

A bill for AN ACT concerning courts.

SENATE BILL NO. 501

A bill for AN ACT concerning local government.

SENATE BILL NO. 515

A bill for AN ACT concerning regulation.

SENATE BILL NO. 676

A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.

Passed the House, May 19, 2021.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

A message from the House by

Mr. Hollman, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of bills of the following titles, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 2079

A bill for AN ACT concerning government.

SENATE BILL NO. 2278

A bill for AN ACT concerning local government.

[May 19, 2021]



Passed the House, May 19, 2021.

JOHN W. HOLLMAN, Clerk of the House

**APPOINTMENT MESSAGE**

**Appointment Message No. 1020179**

To the Honorable Members of the Senate, One Hundred Second General Assembly:

I, Michael Frerichs, Treasurer, am nominating and, having sought the advice of the Senate and by and with the consent of the Senate, appointing the following named individual to the office enumerated below. The consent of this Honorable Body is respectfully requested.

Title of Office: Member

Agency or Other Body: Charitable Trust Stabilization Committee

Start Date: March 1, 2021

End Date: March 1, 2027

Name: Patricia Mota

Residence: 611 South Wells St., Apt. 2606, Chicago, IL 60607

Annual Compensation: Unsalariated

Per diem: Not Applicable

Nominee's Senator: Senator Mattie Hunter

Most Recent Holder of Office: Emilia DiMenco

Superseded Appointment Message: AM 98-364

Under the rules, the foregoing Appointment Message was referred to the Committee on Executive Appointments.

At the hour of 8:17 o'clock p.m., Senator Cunningham, presiding.

**READING CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT A FIRST TIME**

On motion of Senator Villivalam, **Senate Joint Resolution Constitutional Amendment No. 11** having been printed, was again taken, read in full a first time and ordered to a second reading.

At the hour of 8:22 o'clock p.m., the Chair announced that the Senate stands adjourned until Thursday, May 20, 2021, at 1:00 o'clock p.m.

[May 19, 2021]